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eserwceblg@gmaﬂ 0Nt DISTRICT COURT
Attorney: for Defenidant: o
Amanda Reyriolds FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
o _ - )} Case Number: D-19-590131-C
ALFREDO MEDELLIN' ) Dept. No: G
3 ot. N :
Plaintiff, _.) AMENDED ANSWER TG CON[PLAINT
VS, ) TO ESTABLISH CUSTODY, CHILD
g SUPPORT, VISITATION AND
AMANDAREYNOLDS ) COUNTERCLAIM
Defendait, g
)

COMES NOW the Defendant, AMANDA REYNOLDS, by and through her
aﬁ.orneiy; CAROL BARNES, ES.Q".‘,- and answers io Plaintiff’s Complaint o
Confirm Pateinity/Custody and UCCJEA Declaration states and alleges:as follows:

1. Defendant admits the allegations contained in Paragraphs 1,2,3,5,
and 6 of Plaintiff’s Complaint.

2. Defendant denies the allegations contained in Paragraphs 4, 7,8, 9,
10,11, 12,13, and 14 of Plaintiff’s Complaint.

COUNTERCLAIM.
COMES NOW the Defendant, AMANDA REYN OLDS, and hereby claims
000004

1

Case'Number: D-18-590131-C




e

N'M'MN-'MNI&I\:}'HI—!'l-—_'-\'i—.:ll—l)—lr-—-l_h-li—
mg._c\m#myb-tca\a-mz;gmm-h.UJ-MHLc

L- B - SR S N R O

and: alleges apainst the Plaintiff as follows:

L. That for more than six (6) weeks immediately preceding the
commencement of this action, Defendant has been, and now i§;.a bona fide and
actual resident and domiciliary of thie State.of Nevada and has been actually and’
corporeally present in the State of Nevada for more than, six (6) weeks. ir_nme_diatély- |
prior to the commencernernit of this. action, and hag had and still has the intent to
make said State of Nevada her home, residence and domicile for an indefinite
period of time.

2. Thatthe Plaintiff and Defendant have never been married.

3. That the Plaintiff is not the biological father 6f RICARDO LAZZARO
MEDELLIN (date of birth September 13, 2012);

4. Alffedo made a false representati on/misrepresentation as to him being
the father of Ricardo, on Riedrdo’s bifth certificate and the Voluntaty
Acknowledgement of Patemity of Ricardo;

5. Alfredo knew that hé was not the father of Ricardo which he admitted

to it his Opposition, fifed on June 11th, 20 19, page 2, line-5-6-and his counsel

admitted at the June 13th, 2019 hegring:

6. Alftedo intended forthe State.of Nevada to, rel ¥ on his false

|representation;

7.  The State of Nevada justifiably relied on Alfredo’s false
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representation;

8. The State of Nevada sufféred damage caused by Alfredo’s filse,

representation.

9. The presumption of Plaintiffs paternity .of Ricardo is-tebutted by
Plaintiff’ s committing of fraud.

10. That Defendant is fit-and propet person to have Sole Legal and Sole
Physical Custody of the minor child,

11, "That Plaintiff pay Defendant’s Attorney’s Fees and Costs.,

12.  That pursuantto NRS 125.5 10(6), the parties are hereby put on notice

| of the following: PENALTY FOR VIOLATION OF ORDER: THE

ABDUCTION;, CONCEALMENT OR DETENTION:OF A CHILD IN
VIOLATION OF THIS ORDER IS PUNISHABLE AS A CATEGORY “D”
FELONY AS PROVIDE.IN NRS 193.130. NRS 200.359 provides that every
person having a limited right of eustody to a child or any parent having no right of

custody to the child who willfully detains, conceals or removes the child from a

parent, guardian or other person having lawful -custody or'a right of visitation of

the ehildin violation of'an order of this court, or femoves the. ¢hild from the
jurisdiction of the court without the consent of either the court or all persons who
have the right to cistody or vis‘ita_ﬁon is subject to beinig punished for a category

“D" felony as'providedin NRS' 193.130.
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The State of Nevada is the habitual res idence of the mihor child of the

{Partieshereto. The parties are also put on notice that the terms of the Hagu_e
Convention of Octobier 25, 1980, adopted by the 14t Session of the Hague
Conference on Private International Law apply ifa parent abducts or wrongfully
ir"e_ta_ins a child in a foreign country, The parties are-also put on nofice of the

following provisions in NRS: 125 ST10(8):

If a patert of the ¢hild lives in a foreign country of has significart

(8)  Theparties may agree, and the court shall fnclude in the ordér for
custody of the child, that'the United States is the country of habitual residence of
the child for the purposes of applying the-terms of the Hague Convention as set
forth in subsection 7,

(b)  Upon motion of one of the parties, the coutt may order the parent to
post abond if the court determines that the: parent-poses an immirent risk of
wrongfully removing or concealing the child outside of the country of habitual
residence. The bond must in an.amount determined by the . court and may be used
only to pay for the cost of loeatirig the child and 'izetuér'nirig_' him to-his habituat

residence if the child iy wrongfully removed from or coficealed outside the country

lof hah‘_i,tual" iesidence, The fact that.a parent has significant commitments in a

000004
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risk of ;w'ro_ngﬁilly removing or coricealing the child.

That the parties-are also put.on netice of the following provision of NRS
125C.200:

If custody has been established and the custodial parent or a parent having’
joint custody intends to mové his tesidenice toa _plét‘cs outside ‘.o'f this state and to
take the child with him, he must, as soon as possible and beforethe planned move,
attempt 1o obtain the written ¢onsent of the other parent to move the child fromthe
state. If the noneustodial parent or other parént having joint custody refuses 1o
give that consent, the parent planning the move shall, before he leaves the stafe.
with the child, petition the court for perissior to move the child. T he failuie of a |
parentto-comply with the provisions of this section-may be.considered as.a factor
if a change, of custody is tequested by the nongustodial parent o other parent
having joirt custody.

The Parties shall submit the information required in NRS:125B.055, NRS

11125.130 and NRS 125230 on a sepatate form 1o the Court and the Welfare

Division of the Department of Human Resources within ten (10) days from the date

|the Decree in this matter is filed. Such information shall be maintained by the

Clerk in a-confidential manner and not part of the public record. The Paities shall

' update th e information filed with the Court and the Welfare Division of the

Department of Human Resoutces withinten (1 0) days should any of that

000005
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information become inaccurate,
WHEREFORE, Defendant prays for Judgment as follows:
A.  ‘That the Plaintiff and Deferidant have never been married,

B.  That the Plaintiff is not the biological father of RICARDO LAZZARO

|MEDELLIN (date of birth Septeiber 13, 2012);

C.  Alfredo made:a fal'se-.rep’rese'nta'fion‘fmisre'p_resent_a’ti.on:tas.*to ‘him being

‘the father of Ricardo on Ricardo’s birth certificate and the Voluntary

Acknowledgement of Paternity of Ricardo;,

Do Alffedoknew that he was not the father of Ricardo which he admitted

{to-in his Opposition, filed or June 11h, 2019, page Z, line 5-6'and his counsel

|admitted at the June 13th, 2019 hearing;
15 1

E.  Alfredo inttended for the State of Nevada-to rely on his false
representation;

F. The State of -Nev_a‘c_'ia_ju.st"i'ﬁably: relied on Alfredo’s false.

representation;

G.  The State of Nevada suffered damage caused by Alfredo’s false
representation.
H.  That presumption of Plaintiff’s paternity of Ricardo is rebutted by
Platiti{f*s committing of fraud.
1 That Defendant is fit.and proper person to have Sole Legal.and Sole
000006
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| Physical Custody of the miner ¢hild.

J. That Plaintiff pay Defendant’s Attorney’s Fees and Costs.

K.  Forsuch other and further relief as the Court may deem just and.

properin the premises.

DATED this. /¥ day of August 2019.

BARNES LAW GROUP, LLC

2. %M

Andrew J, ’S"_e'j?nprazik,_- Esq.
Nevdda Bar No. 15093
712 8. Jones Boulevard
Las Vegas, Nevada 89107
(702) 382-901 1

&t’torhe'y for Defendant

600007y
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VERIFICATION

STATE OF NEVADA )

COUNTY OF CLARK y

AMANDA REYNOLDS, .ﬁrst»béi'llg duly sworn, deposes and says:

‘That she'is the Defendant in the abiove-entitled action; that.she has read the above and

foregoing AMENDED ANSWER TO COMPLAINT TO ESTABLISH CUSTODY; CHILD.
SUPPORT, VISITATION AND COUNT ERELAIM and knows thescoitents thereof, and that the

sanie Js-trug of het own knowledgs, except as to those matters therein stated on information and-

hei'iejﬁ'-and.gs to those maiters, she believes them to- be true:

AMANDA ﬁémoms:

&5 NOTARY PUBIIGS
SO
z,;' A‘ﬂ MARIA M. SERNA

&) sr, :

=BTy STATE OF NEVADA - COUNTY oF ormmac .

- MY APPOINTMENT XA gEbT. 23 ng{"sx
T 085439 -1

SUBS CRlBED aid SWORN 1o. befora me

]fj (vAugust 2019.
T |

s
.!_;!

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

STATE OF NEVADA )

COUNTY OF CLARK )

‘On (his ! day of August2019, personally appeared before me, & Notary Public,
AMANDA REYNDLDS,- .__l(_.DOWI_'l to-me to be the persoh:.d_escr-;bcd in and who executed g

foregoing instiument, ANSWER TO COMPLAINT TO ESTABLISH CUSTODY, CHILD:

SUPPORT, VISITATION AND COUNTERCLAIM, she-ackiowlédged to me that the
instruments were executed fieely and vo.lqn,tari_ly«_and for the same wses and purposes therein.

mentioned.

'year in thisycertificate fiist above written.

- Ay } 171’1,,

NOTARY FUBLIC * ] Notark)bhc in‘and for the said Coiniity and State
MARIA M. SEFNA

e STAIE OF HEvain - COWKE fOF CLAMK.
o MV.:mema:NTE:P SEFT. 27 o018

e sREE 000008

‘Witness my hand and officidl seal the d ¥ ay
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|EMAIL: efile@lvfamilylaw.com

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby- certify that ] am an employee of Barnes Law Group, that on the

;iay of{flgl 53120 19, I placed 4 true and correct copy-of the AMENDED
ANSWER TO COMPLAINT TO ESTABLISH CUSTODY, CHILD
SUPPORT, VISITATION AND COUNTERCLAIM to be served as follows:

Pursuanit to BDCR 5.05(a), EDCR 8.05(f), NRCP(5)(b)(2)(D) and

Administrative Order 1402 captioned “in the Administrative Matter of Electronic.

Service in the _’Ei‘g‘hth Judicial Distriot.Court,” by mandatory électronic service

threugh the Eighth Judicial District Cowrt’s electronic filing system to the
attorney(s)-at the email address listed below:

{{ROBERTS STOFFEL FAMILY LAW GROUP

Ly N. Hughes, Esq.

s’%K j]()h/‘\ %

Emplk{)_@e’ of Baﬂnes Law Group

gooeos
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{Hughes, Esq. o0f the Roberts Stoffel Family Law Group, as and for a Complaint to
| Establish Custody, Child Support, and Visitation against Defendant AMANDA

Electronically Filed
512412019 2:19 PM
Steven.D. Grierson

'CLERK.OF THE COU
COMP &.‘kﬁ,ﬁw
Lynn N. Hughes, Esq. (6349) :

'Roberts Stoffel Family Law Group

4411 South Pecos Road

%{1{5 Vegas, Nevada 39121 CASE NO: D-19-590131
r{l(} ) 474-7477 Departmeni

EMA eﬁleg@lvfamalylaw com .

Attorney for Plaintiff, Alfredo Medellin

DISTRICT COURT, FAMILY DIVISION

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
ALFREDO MEDELLIN, )
) Case No:
Plaintiffs, } Dept No:
VS, %
AMANDA REYNOLDS, %
Defendant. g

'COMPLAINT TO ESTABLISH CUSTODY,
CHILD SUPPORT, VISITATION
Now comes ALFREDO MEDELLIN, by and through his attorney, Lynn N,

REYNOLDS, and alleges as follows:

1. That Plaintiff, for a period of more than six weeks immediately
Preceding the filing of this action, have been and now are a bona fide resident of the
State of Nevada, County of Clark, and has been actually physically present and
domiciled in Nevada for more than six (6) weeks prior to the filing of this action;

2. That Defendant, for a period of more than six weeks immediately
Preceding the filing of this action, has been and now is a bona fide resident of the
State of Nevada, County of Clark, and has been actually present and domiciled in
Nevada for more than six (6) weeks prior to the filing of this action;

00004190
1

Case Number” 2-18-580131-C
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5. The Parties to this action dated, but never married.

4. The Parties have one (1) minor child of their relationship, to wit:
Ricardo Medellin (“Ricardo™), born September 13, 2012 (currently 6 years of age).

5.  ‘Nevada is the habitual state of residence for the child.

6.  The minor child was bori1 in the State of Nevada, and has been in the
| State of Nevada in excess of six (6) months prior to the commencement of this |
action and the State of Nevada is the “home state” of the minor child pursuant to
NRS § 125A.085 and the State of Nevada has jurisdiction of this matter pursuant to
NRS § 125A.305.

7. There is no dispute that Defendant is the Fathet of the minor child, he
|is list on the birth certificate as the father of the child.

8. Defendant is believed to be currently abusing drugs and alcohol and
has often left the child at home with other children who are not of age to properly
supervise the care and control of small children.

9.  The Plaintiff requests primary legal and primary physical custody of
the child because it is not in the best interest of the ‘minot child to allow the
Defendant to have joint custody. Defendant should be allowed to have specified
supervised visitation.

10. Defendant should be ordered to pay child support, pursuant to NRS & |
125B.070 and §125B.080, at the rate of eighteen percent (18%) of her gross |
monthly income, but not less than the statutory minimum of $100.00 per month. |
| Defendant’s obligation for child support should continue until said child reaches the
age of eighteen (18), o, if the child is still attending high school at the age of
eighteen (18), until the child reaches the age of nineteen (19) or graduates from
i high school, or is otherwise emancipated, whichever occurs first.

11/

111
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11. In accordance with NRS § 125B.085, the Parties should provide health
insurance, if available, for the minor child. The minor child is currently covered.
through health insurance available through the State of Nevada. The obligation to
provide health insurance shall contitiue until said ¢child reaches the age of eighteen
.(18), or, if the child is still attending high school at the age of eighteen (18), until
the child reaches the age of nineteen (19) or graduates from high school, or
otherwise emancipates, whichever occurs first, '

12.  The Parties shall equally divide unreimbursed medical expenses for the
minor child, inctuding but not limited to medical, surgical, dental, orthodontists, |
arid optical expenses, pursuant to the 30/30 rule (within thirty (30) days of receiving
a bill, same shall be submitted to the other Party for review and payment shall be .
made within thirty (30} days of receipt of said bill).

13, Plaintiff should claim the minor child each and every vyear, |
commencing in 2019, for the purpose of filing of a Federal Income Tax Return.

14, Plaintiff is seeking an award of attorney fees and costs in this matter.
If this matter is resolved by way of a Default, Plaintiff’s Counsel shall file a

Memoraridum of Fees and Costs which shall be the basis for the Court’s award of

attorney fees.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for a Judgment:

1.  The Court shall enter an Order granting the Plaintiff sole legal and
physical custody.

2. The Court shall enter an Order for child support as set forth herein,

3, The Court shall enter an Order for both Parties to provide health

insurance coverage, until further Order of the Court or until no longer available

| pursuant to NRS §125B.085, with the premium split between the Parties, and for

the Parties to equally share any and all unreimbursed medical expenses.
4. The Court shall enter an Order for the Plaintiff to claim the minor child

as a deduction on her taxes each and every year.

000012
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5.  Forsuch :}_ﬁer relief the court finds to be just and proper.
Dated this :'—{ 'I‘élay of May 2019.

Roberts Stoffel Family Law Group

N “M‘".._.“"."')r‘.‘f'/ f‘;/f, ‘{f//:} _,T_'"I
P e L
{ Lynn N. Hughes, Esq. (6349)
4411 South Pecds Road
Las Vegas, Nevada 89121
Attorney for Plaintiff

Q00043
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Alfredo Medellin this May gﬁ“zom

VERIFICATION
ALFREDO MEDELLIN, being first duly sworn according to law, déposes

and says:

The undersigned is the Plaintiff in the above entitled action; he has read the
above and foregoing Complaint for Child Custody, Visitation and Support, and
knows the contents thereof: the same is true of his own knowledge, except for any

matters therein stated upon information and belief, and as to those matters therein

| stated, he believes them to be true.

STATE OF NEVADA 3)
S5
COUNTY QF CLARK. )

e P

Subscribed and Sworn to before meby

% JENNIFER J. S0UZA
q FEAR, Notary Public, State of Nevada §
d + Agpeiniment No. 04-81773-1 §

| / My Appt. Explres Dec 2, 2020 &

R,

(x"\mhfm%’fL

Notary .'E?;ub'lib' @aiﬁéi'for shid
County and State

000C14
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Electronically Filed
1118/2019 12:04 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COY
EX-PARTE { ﬁ;ﬁ ¢..45__ ,Ew—

Cdrol Barnes, Esq. ¢
Nevada-Bar No.: 7985
Andrew Semprazik, Esq.
Nevada Bar No.: 15093
BARNES LAW GROUP, LLC
712 S. Jones Boulevard,
Las Vegas, Nevada 89107
Office (702) 382-5011
Facsimile:(702) 3820241
Attorney for Defendant:
Amanda Revnolds: |

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA.

ALFREDO MEDELLIN ) . o
: ) Case Number: D-19-590131-C
Plaintiff, ) Dept.No: G
V- !

AMANDA REYNOLDS

Defendant

DEFENDANT’S EX-PARTE REQUEST TO PRODUCE VOLUNTARY
- ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF PATERNITY
COMES NOW the Defendant, A’MANDA.REYNOLDS,? by-and through her
attorney of 1ié;;br§d, Carol Barnes, Esq. of BARNES LAW GROUP, LLC, and
hereby 1*eq1_1estsii§hi‘s.(30urt to order the State of Nevada to release a copy of the

{| volumtary acknowled gmient of paternity signed by Amanda Reyriolds and Alfredo

Medellin re g_ard_ijn"g Ricardo Medellin to-Amanda-Reynolds.
W i

W
00004s
1

Case Number, D-18-580131-C
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Dated this 18th day of November 2019.

BARNES LAW GROUP, LLC

Andrew I Semptazik, Esq.
Nevada Bar No: 15093
712 S. Jones Boulevard
Las Vegas, Nevada 89107
(702) 382-9011

Attorney for Defendant

000046
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| ALFREDO MEDELLIN

Electronically Filed
12212019 3;15 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE:COURT,
,-4". + ._ 1 ’

LynnN. Hughes, Esq. ({6349)

ROBERTS STOFFEL FAMILY LAW GROUP
1411 South Pecos Road

1.as Vegas, Nevada 89121

PH: (702)474-7007

EMAIL: efile@lvfamilylaw.com
Attorney for Alfredo Medellin

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Casé No:  D-19-590131-C
Dept.No: G
V. Y}
{ NOTICE OF ENTRY OF
ORDER CONFIRMING
PATERNITY

AMANDA RAYNOLDS

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE an Order Confirming Paternity.and Derying,
Defendant’s Motion for Summary Judgement was duly entered on the 26" day of
November 2019, a copy of which is attached hereto and fully incorporated herein

by reference.

DATED this 2™ day of December 2019.

ROBERTS STOEEE.

AMILY LAW GROUP

Attorney for Plaintiff, Alfredo Medellin

Page 1 of 2 000047
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I hereby cextify that I am an employee of Roberfs Stoffel Family Law Group,
and on the 2" day of December. 2019, 1 served by and through Wiz-Net electronic

service, pursuant Clark County District Court Administrative Order 14-2 for service

| of documients identified in Rule 9 of the N.E.F.C.R., the foregoing Order

Appointing Administrator with Full Authority to Independently Administer The

Estate, and for Issuance of Letters of Independent Administration as follows:

Carol Barnes, Esq.,
esearviceblg@email.com

ﬁéﬂft_/

By: ]
Employee éff RobertsLStoffel Family Law Gloup
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Electronically Filed
11/26/2019'10:50 AM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERE OF THECOURY,
DEC etsunil
Lynii N, Hughes, Bsq. (6349)

[IROBERTS STOFFEL FAMILY LAW GROUP

1411 South Pecos Road.

Las Vegas, Nevada 89121

PH: (702) 474-7007

FAX: (_'?02]_474 “1477

EMAIL: efile@lvfamilylaw.com
Attorneys for Plaintiff, Alftedo Medellin

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
| ALFREDO MEDELLIN, ) Case No:. D-19:590131-C

} DeptNo: G

Plaintiff, 3
. ) N
_ ) Date of Hearing: Qctober 24,2019
AMANDA REYNOLDS, ) Time of Hearing: 9:00 a.m.

)
Defendant.. )
)

ORDER CONFIRMING PATERNITY
AND DENYING DEFENDANT’S MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGEMENT

This matter having come before the Court on Defendant’s Motion 1o Disntiss ﬁJr.-F ailure

fo Join.a Necessary Party, Motion Jor Summary Judgment, Motion 1o Remove Nome from Birth
Certificate and Affidavit of Paternity, and Motion for Atiorney’s Fees and Closts, and Plaintiff's
Counterinotion for Summary Judgment Regarding Palernity.on October 24, 2019 4t 9:00 a,m,

| Plaintiff _A;ﬁédo.__Medcl_lin_ appearing in person by and through his attorney, Lynn N. Hughes,

‘Esq., and Defendant Amarida Reynelds appearing in person by and thraugh her atforney Andrew

|i-Semprazik, E’sq.

The Court, having reviewed of the-papers-and pleadings on file herein:

THE COURT FINDS Plaintiff Alfreds Medellin is identified as the Father on the child’s
birth certificate. The procedure for removing a parent from the birth certificate is by having the
parental rights terfninated and having another party take over financial responsibility for the child.
That is not the case in this matter.

_ THE COURT HEREBY ORDERS AND DECREES the P aintiff, Alfredo Medellin, is-
the legal father of the child, Ricardo Medeilin.
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THE COURT FURTHER ORDERS the Defendant’s motions are DENIED.

THE COURT FURTHER ORDERS the parties shall continue with the temporary joint
physical and joint legal cuslody, as set forth in the prior orders.

THE COURT FURTHER ORDERS the calendar call on January 30, 2020 and the.
Evidentiary Hearing set on February 3, 2020 shall stand, and. the issues shall be limited to-

custedy, visitation and child support,
| IT 18 SO ORDERED this M% ,2019.

District Court Jddge ‘v’ O~
Rhonda K. Forsherg
Respectfully submitted: Content approved:
| Dated Q@\J WA pad MOV, 7Th 5019
Roberts Stoffel Famﬁy Law Group Barinies Law Group, LLC'
LynirN. Hughedr Esq.. 1(6349) Carof Barnes Esq ¢ (7985
44118, P:y_ "Road Andrew Semprazik, Esq. (15093)
{| Las Vega, L;Fﬂt':’wa.da 89121 712 S. Jones Bivd,
Atlorneys Tor Plaintiff Las Vegas, Nevada 89107

Attorneys for Defendant
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MOT

Carol Barnes, Esq.
Nevada Bar No, 7985
Andrew Semprazik, Esq.

Nevada Bar No. 15093
BARNES LAW GROUP, LLC
712 8. Jones Blvd,
Las Vegas, Névada 89107

Office (702) 382-9011
Attotney for Defendant:

| Amanda Reynolds.

ALFREDO MEDELLIN

V&

AMANDA REYNOLDS

Electronically Filed
8/12/2019 2:42PM
Stevern D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COURT, '
. ‘ ] ]

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Case Numniber; D=19-590131-C
b DeptNo: G

NOTICE OF MOTION AND
MOTION TO DISMISSFOR
FAILURE TO JOIN A NECESSARY
J PARTY, MOTION FOR SUMMARY
} JUDGMENT, MOTIONTQ =~
- REMOVE NAME FROM BIRTH
Defendant. | SERTIFICATE AND AFFIDAVIT

- ") OF PATERNITY, AND MOTION

) FOR ATTORNEY’S FEES AND

COSTS

Ddte-of Hearing:
¥ Time of Hearing;:

) ORAL ARGUMENT REQUESTED

Plaintiff, -

YOU ARE REQUIRED TO FILE A WRITTEN RESPONSE TO THIS
MOTION WITH THE CLERK OF THE COURT AND TO PROVIDE THE
UNDER-SIGNED WITH A COPY OF YOUR RESPONSE WITHIN TEN (10)
DAYS OF YOUR RECEIPT OF THIS MOTION, FAILURE TO FILE A
| WRITTEN RESPONSE _
(10) DAYS OF YOUR RECEIPT OF THIS MOTION MAY RESULT IN THE

REQUESTED RELIEF

WITH THE CLERK OF THE COURT WITHIN TEN
BEING GRANTED BY THE COURT WITHOUT

| 000021
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I HEARING PRIOR. TO THE SCHEDULED'HEARING DATE

TO: Plaintiff and his attorney of record;

YOU AND EACH OF YOU WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the

‘within. motion will come on for hearing on the dayof _ .

20192t am./p.m. Courtroom G of the Fami ly Division of the Eighth Judicial

District Court, 601 North Pecos Road; Las Vegas NV 89101 , Or as soon thereafier

as the matter can be heard.

COMES NOW the Defendant, AMANDA REYNOLDS (Arnanda), by and.

through her attorney of record, Carol M. Barnes., of the BARNES LAW GROUF,

W

W

L.
2.
3.

4,

and requests that this Honorable Court, order as follows:

Dismiss the Custody matter for failure to join da necessary party;

Grant Sumuinary Judgment to Amanda in this Custody matter;.
Order Alfredo’s name to be removed from birth cértificate of minor ¢hild:

Order Alfred_o’-s.jnam_e to be removed fifom affidavit ofpa’temity-;

. Order an end'to the temporary custody orders;

Award Amanda Attomey’s Fees and Costs.
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This motion is made and based upon the papers and pleadings on file herein,

Dated this, | 5+hday of August 2019,

the points and authorities incorporated lierein, the dffidavit of Amarda in.support

ofher motion and such argument and evidence as may be adduced at the hearing.

BARNES LAW GROUP

A

Andrew Semprazik, Bsq.

Nevada Bar Number: 15093

712 S: Jones Blvd,

Las Vegas; Nevada 89107
(702) 382-9011

Attorney for Defendant

G000Z3
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1
STATEMENT OF FACTS
Amanda and Alfredo met as students at Lib‘f’:rty High'Schiool in 2004,
Shortly thereafter they began dating but ultimately ended the. relationship in 2006

dueto-Alfredo’s anger issues. Amanda became pregnant with her minor child,

|IRicardo by a man namied Tyrell Johnson. 'Tyreil Johnson informed Amanda at the

time that he wasn’t ready to be a father. After the third trimester of Amanda’s

pregnancy wit Ricardo, Alfredo re-entered Amanda’s [ife in 201 1. Amanda was

slightly noticeably pregnant with Ricardo and both parties weré well aware that

Amenda was pregnant and Alfiedo was notthe father of Ricardo.

Atound 2013, Amanda and Alfredo discussed possibly getting married in the
future, They believed their future together was bright. Around this time, Alfredo
mentioned they:should begin the process of amending Ricardo’s bitth certificate

Ia__r_ld adding Alfredo’s name despite both knowing hé is not Ricardo’s father.

| Amanda agreed to Alfredo’s idea and the parties began the process. The parties

eventually received the new birth certificate with Alfredo’s name.on it in 2016 due

|to technicalities, when Ricardo was thre e-years old,,

After the parties moved intogether in 201 3, Amanda noticed characteristics
of Alfredo she. found'h‘cu'b‘l'ing'.-ﬁis anger issugs weie still present, as he would

throw or punch items.in the house whenever he got. upset, This frightened Avetie,

g00024
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| Amanda’s biological daughter from a previous .rel'_afions}'ﬁp-, anytime she observed

this, Alfredo also Be_gan to stay out to all kiours of the night to gamble, leaving
Amanda to take care.of the children alene. Alfredo’s neglect of Amanda continued
to grow, he seeming disinterésted in her and distracted. Amanda would later
discover Alfredo had begun to see another woman, Ashley Forte (Ashley), while
.\s%i]l being with Amanda. At this point it was clear a telationship. with Alfredo was
no longer promising and the relatjonship ended in 2014.

‘Amanda and Alfredo seemed 1o get-along better as friends than lovers. This

cordial relati onship-came to a sereeching halt in May of 2016 when Alfredo

discovered Amanda Was dating her now fiancé, Shine Flores. Alfredo would get

{upset when he would surreptitiously réad Amanda’s texts between Amanda and

ghifriend, Ashley, irite his home.

In 2018; Alfredo’s unusual-"hehav"ior continued to-esealate. Alfredo became
more controlling and in¢oo perative with. Amanda. Amanda wanted to enroll
Ricardo into the same school his sister went to, Cartwright Elementary School.
Upon hearing this, Alfredo convinced Amznda that Ricardo should geto Schorr
Elementary as that was, he alleged, a STEM Academy and better for Ricardo’s
edueation, This school also happened to be near Alfredo’s home. Amarida trusted

Alfredo’s word and enrolled him in Schorr Elementary, Shine latér looked up
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Schorr Elementary and discovered-that' Schorr was.an average public school with
ratings not much better than Cartwright. Because of Alfredo’slies, Ricardo lost the:
| opportunity to go to:school with his.sister for her final year at the school. In

addition, Amandanow had to drive to three different schools across the valley, five :

days a week, twice a day, topick.up Ricardo, Averie, and ‘Shine’s son, Shawn.

Amanda attemnpted:to have Alfredo agree to Ricardo going to sohool at

:Carth_i’ght but Amatida was shut down each time. Amanda also proposed they

begina weekly schedule of exchanging Ricardo instead of randomly switching

| days between the partiés as thé_,y had heen doing. Alfredo declingd this as well,

Alfredo finally agreed to.a weekly schedule, shortly before filing his action.

On May 27%, 2019 at 3:30 p.m., Amanda went to pick up Ricardo from

| Altredo, Alfredo refused to turty over Ricardo. It should again be noted that

Alftedo has no biological relationship with Ricardo, Alfredo knows-that he is not

|the father of Ricardo, and Ricardo knows that that Alfredo is riot his Father.

Dismayed that Alfredo refused to return her son t¢ her, Amanda contacted

the return of her child. In front of the LVMPD and Amanda,-Alfiedo rushed.

| Ricardo in the house before he could even speak with his mothét, The LVMPD

directed Amanda to file a motion since Alfredo was listed on 'thle-fbirth,- certificate.
During this fime of wrongfully withholding Ricatdo from Amands, Alfredo
000026
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limited Ricardo’s contact with his mother to two telephone calls. Alfredo permitted

Amanda to speak to her son for a maximum of thiee minutes, Amanda__Womd- ask:

‘numerous titmes to.5ee her son and each tiie Alfredo would refuse. Averie would

{[/ask her mom when she is seeing Ricardo again to which a hearfbroken Arhanda

had no-answer,

Alfredo claimed that he was retaining Ricardo because he was allegedly
concerned Amarida -was under the influence of drugs. Amanda passed a drug test
and receivedthe results on June 7% 2019 which were sent.immediately to
opposing counsel. Alfredo still refused to return Ricardo and did niot return him
until court ordered to do so at the June 13 20190 hearing.

Alfredo continues to exhibit his disregard for Amanda’s rights as Ricardo’s

| mother and for'the Court itself, Despite beihg ordered by the Court that Ricardo be -

enrolled in Cartwright Elementary, Alfredo enrolled Ricardo into Schory
Elementary again, In additi on; Alfredo chariged the-CCSD Parent Portal to put that
Ricardo is riot in Amanda’s household. See, Exhibit 4. This prevented Amanda
from being able to enrsll Rigards into Cartwright Flementary as CCSD now
showed she was not the parent with decision making over Ricardo’s '-schﬂol'ing_.
Despite multiple contacts with Alfredo *s counsel, Alfredo still did not change the
'in-fdnnatibn-.;This blatant disregard.of the:Coutt’s order led Anianda to expend
additional tithe and money in having to obtain all the information C CSD required
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to-change Ricardo back to being in Amanda’s household so he can attend

|| Cartwright. See, Exhibit B.

Alfredo also ighored Amanda’s wishes when it came to Ricardo’s health.

Ricardo had injured his chin when he tripped so Amanda had two nurses and a

surgical assistant, shie knows come to the house to tend to it. They used medical
grade glue and a bandage for it to heal. Amanda informed Alfredo- what happened
and to.not remove the bandage so it can heal ‘properly. See, Exhibit C. Alfredo,
never notifying Amanda, took Ricardo to see a doctor who removed the bandage
and confitmed that there was no infection and used the same glue and b'ané_la_ge that

had already been applied to Ricardo. This unilateral action by Alfredo will now

lead to scarring.

Alfredo refuses fo listen to Amandia’sdie_tary suggestions for Ricardo which
has led to-many cavities for Ricardo. Alf_fedo-’s.resp:o_nse-wash_e wouldn’t cut down
on sugar “unless the dentist tells him to”. Ricardo’s ;-1-'e-'g_u1ﬁa1--phys-'ician
recomimended orthopedic shoes for Ricardo and when Amanda suggested buying

proper fitting shees; Alfredo belittled her for it. This is a contimiing pattern of

Alfredo attemipting to dictate alllegal decisions over Ricarde.

‘Alfredo has become even more hostile and controlling over Amanda’s

rtelationship with Rieardo. Recently Ashley and Amanda had a disagreement over

text regarding Ricky’s drop off'time on S_u_nda___y nights. It should be noted that
000028
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| Amanda never threatened anyone, never called anyone names, and never insulted

anyone: In response, Alfredo directed: that Athanda and her family are to wait until
after Alfredo and his family congratylate Ri cky on his school play before they

approach him. Once again, Amanda is the biclogival parent and Alfredo -never

| adopted Ricky.

‘Alfredo’s actions have had a noticeable impact on Ricardo. Ricardo. has
begun to-mimic Alfredo’s angry-cutbursts, leading to ye'l.lin'g.--alld 'hitting objects
when he’s angry. Amanda has had to work on Ricardo’s temper. Tn addition,

Alfrede’s wrongful 18 day withhglding of Ricardo has begun to affect Ricardo®s

-relati-nnship--w__ith his mother. Typically, Amanda could run to the grocery store-or

.'g}{m for & short period while Ricardo is watched at Hiome. Ricardo now refuses to

let Amanda leave the house unless he goes with her, This is all attributable to

Alfr_‘e__.d’d;’ls actions and blatant disregard gff‘&nanda‘fs’ If_ights; as.Ricardo’s mother.,

IL,
LEGAL ANALYSIS

A. Amanda’s Motion fo Dismiss Should be Granted Due To Alfredo’ s
Failure To Join A Necessarv Party

Under NRCP 1.2'(5)(6)_, a motion to-dismiss for failure to join a patty under

| Rule 19 may be asserted by motion any time before trial is ovar,

Under NRCP 19(a)(1), a party is necessary if:

(A)in that persdn's absence, the  court eannot-accord complete

9. 000022
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relief'among existing parties; or )

(B) that persen claims an intetest relating to the subject of the action
and is o situated ﬂaat'--d"iSp'o'éEﬁg -of the action in the_petsSon's absence
may: |

(i) as a practical matter impair.or impede the person's ability to protect
the interest; or '

(i) leave an existing party subject t6 a substantial risk of incuiting
-double, multiple, or otherwise inconsistent obligations because of the
iterest.

To feasibly join-a party, that party must be subject to service of process-and

Jjoinder mitst.not deprive the district court of subjeet -ina‘ﬁeir.jﬁrisdictibn.-. ROSE,

LLCv. TREASURE ISLAND, LLC. 135 Nev. Adv. Op. 19 (Nev. Ct, of App..

2019). A party is considered indispensable Yonly when joinder of that patty ig not

fedsible", Blaine Equip, Co. v. State, Purchiasing Div., 138 P.3d 820, 822 (2006). If

1 |joinder isnot feasible, the court 'mu_st-.,de.term_i'ne',.'in;e-'quity- and goed conscience,

whetlier the action should proceed or be dismissed. NRCP-19(b) (provi ding d four-

factor test to determine whether a necessary party is indispensable). Humphries v.

g || Eighth Judicial Dist. Couri, 312.P3d 484, 487 (2013);

The factors the Court reviews to determine whether a recessary party is
indispensable-are’:

(1) the extent to which a judgment rendered in the person’s absence
might préjudice that person or the existing parties;

(2) _t;t};esextenarta which, any prejudice could be lessened or avoided
by: .
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(A) protective provisions in'the judgment;
(B) shaping the relief; or
(C) other measuies;

(3) Wh:‘e’_ther,a_jtic_lfment rendered in the person’s. absence would be.
adequatf‘:; and

(4) whether the plaintiff would have an adequate iémedy if the.
action were dismiissed for nohjoinder.

I'i-"I'ei-e-,__ Alfredo has failed to name a necessary party to his action and therefore

his complaitit inust be-dismissed. Alfrédo has nof named Ricardo’ s-fathef, Tyrell

Johnson, as a party to this action. "Ty_rel 1,-as Ricardo ’s-'b-iologisal'_ father, has'an

immense interestin this case-as his constitational rights as a_;pareht'wfll be
terminated with him never receiving notice they are being taken from him. Alfredo
wishes to extinguish Tyrell’s tights as'the biological father'of Ricardo, ending
Tyrell’s right to make all legal decisions for his biological child. Tyréll is the

epitome of a necessary party requiring notice.of this.action:

In addition to being anecessary party, Tyrell isan i_r_;difsp_ensaiﬁle party should

101 Alfredo hot be-able to serve Tytell personally, Tyrell will be prejudiced .g-reaﬂ-y by

| this action. Continuing the acfion with Tyrell receiving rio notice of it will destroy

his constitutional rights over his biological child while neverbeing aware they are

being taken from him. This prejudice can not be lessened as this Alfredo is

|attempting to gain custody over Tyrell’s biological child. By. granting Alfredo

custody rights, Tyrell’s rights to determine.the upbringing of hischild will be

destroyed without him having an opportunity: to defend them. Once these rights are.

000034

11




10

11

12.

13
14

15 |
16
17 |

18
19
20

1

22 |

23
24
25
26

27 |

28

gone, they-are gone, Making this-decision without Tyrell receiving notice of this

matter is net'adequate ds Tyrell’s coristitutional rights will be terminated

|| inbeknownst to him, Alfredo has an available adequate remedy should this action

be dismissed due to nenjoinder. Alfredo is free to providenotice via the newspaper

-'s,',houl'_d Alfredo not be able t@-pensénaﬂ;}'- serve Tyrell.

Alfredo’s niotion must be dismissed for failure to joina necessary party.
Tyrell has constitutionat sights as the biological parent of Ricardo. Alfredo hastiof
named 'Tyr.e.l;_l‘_a's" a party to this action, seekin g to teimingte his rights.as a parent.

without informing him. Alfredo’s motion must be dismissed.

B. Summary Judgment Should Be Granted To Amanda

NRCP 12 {c) states in pertinent partas follows:

After the pleadings are closed — but earty: enough not to delaytrial
— a party may. move for judgment on the pleadings,

NREP 56 states in pertinent part as. follows:

{a) A-party may move for summary Judgment, identifying each claimi
or defense — ot the part of each claim or defense — on which
SUMIMary Judgment is:sought. The court shall. grant summary
Judgment if the movant shows that there is no genuine dispute as
to any material fact and the movant is entitled to judgment as g,
matter of law, The court should state on the-record the reasons for
granting or denying the motion.

{b) Unless a different time i5set- by local rule or the court orders
otherwise, a party may file a motion for summary judgment at any
time until 30 days after the close-of all discovery,

000032
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Summary judgment is appropriste when no-. genuine issues. of material fact

temain fof trial and the moving party is entitled to judgment as-a miatter of law, See

Bird v. Casd Royale West, 97 Nev, 67, 624 P.2d 17 (1981). Tt is well established

that 2 motion pursuant to NRCP 12(c) is designed to provide a mieans of disposing

|| of cases when material facts arenot in dispute and & judgment on the merits canbe

achieved by focusing on the coritent of the pleadings. See, Duff v. Lewis, 114 Nev.
564, 568,958 P.2d 82.(1998).

The substanitive law controls which factual disputes are material, and which
ate lirelevant. See, Wood . Saféway, 121 Nev. 724, 121 P.3d 1026 (2005), A
_factua'l disputeis genuine when the evidence is such’ that a rational trier of fact
could return a verdict for the nonmoving party. Jd.

Upon miotion for summiary judgiitent, the honmoving paity is not entitled to

build a csse on the gossamer threads of ' whimsy, speculation, and conjecture. See,

Wood, 121 Nev. 724, 121 P.3d 1026, Rather a party opposing summary judgment

There is no Genyine Issue for Trial

Alfredo has admitted. multiple tirhes he knows he is not the biological fatlier

6f Ricardo. See; Alfiedo’s Opposition filed on June 1 1‘[‘.; 2019, page 2, lines 5-6..

{1 Also, as a matter of law, Alfredo is not-the legal parent of Ricardo either, NRS

126,021 specifically staies:
3. “Parent and chijld relationship™ means the Jegal relationship existing:

13 000033
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between a child and his orher natural or adoptive parents inciderit to
which the law confers or iniposes rights, privileges, dities and
obligations. It includes the. mother and child relationship arid the father
and child relationship.

(emphasis added)

When Alfredo claimed he was the legal father on the volutitary

acknowledgement, he did so krowing he was nof the biological father.of Ricardo

nor-was he the.adoptive father of Ricardo, No ecourt order made-Alfredo the father’

of Ricarde nor'was Ricardo born ih a mamiage between Amanda and Alfredo.
Under Nevada law; in no way did « legal parent-child relationship exist between
Alfredo and Ricardo when Alfredo sigried the voluntary acknowledgmieiit form.

Furthermore, no legal parent-child relationship was formed when Alfredo

signed the voluntary acknowledgment form. Under NRS 126.053, an

,aé‘khowledgcment of paternity may be challenged on the grounds of fraud, duress,

or material mistake of fact:2

Here: frand was committed in the 'S_E_i'gl‘l-il‘ig}-(}f"ﬂ‘lé‘ voluntary '_ac;knowledgmen{
form: In Nevada, fiaudulent misrepresentation accurs when a false representation is
made with knowledge or belief that it is false, or with an insufficient basis of
information for making the representation, and with intent.t6 induce the plaintiffto

act, and the plaintiff relies on the mistepresentation with: resulting damages. Jordan

|v.State Dep't of Motor V. ehicles, 110.P. 3d30, 51 {Nev. 2005),
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Although during a child custody matter'the plainfiff and defendant are

| typically the individual parties, fraud was still committed despite the State of

{ Nevada not beiiig a paity to this case. A false representation was made claiming

that Alfredo was the father of Ricardo. This was known by both parties he was not

the father of Ricardo. By claiming he was the father of Ricardo, Alfredo wished to

| induce the State of Nevada inio acknowledging him as the father and-putting his

natne on the birth certificate as the father, which the State of Nevada did so by
relying on his false claim, Alfredo’s fraudulent representation of beirig Ricardo’s
father entwined the State-of Nevada in condoning and perpetuating a legal fiction,

This fraudulent representation caused damage to the State of Nevada by abusing

' ju_dicial resources, undermining the faith in the system the State uses in ensuring

proper parents are recognized by the State and made the State complicit in cutting
off the rights of the biclogical father. In addition, the Division of Welfare and
Suppottive Services reiterates the State’s belief of the importance of relying on
correct information, stating that it Is illegal to-provide false information on a child’s
birth certificate, as Alfredo has done:3 See, Exhibir D.

4s a Matter of Law Amasnda Must Prevail

INRS 126.053(3)

¥ Additionally, Nevada's Division of Health and Human Services equates fisrepresefitation with fraird stating.

.. And @ paternity issue'is raised and chailenged with new inforination, such as.._allegations of

fraud/misrepresentation..,” (Child Support Enfarcement Manuai, Chiapter 1V, Parentage 400.3, Sept:2016).

15 000035
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There isno dispute of material fact in this case. Alfredo is not the biglogical

|father of Ricardo as he has-admitted to several firges. Alfredo has ot adopted
Ricardo. Alfredo convinced Amanda to list his name on the. birth certificate of
Ricardo when it appeared their relationship was ‘healthy and :brigﬁt..Alfre_dg never

|gained the status as a legal parent as his alleged claim of parentage was committed

though fraud. Amanda as the biolegical mether is free to determine who can be-
inyolved in Her child’s life. The facts of this case require stummary judgment to be:
ordered in favor of Amanda.

C. Alfredo’s name Should be Removed from Ricardo’s Birth Certificate
and Affidavit of Paternity and Temporary Orders of Joint Legal and

Joint Physical Custody Should Cease.

"The Due Process Clause of the Fourteenth Ameiidment protects Amanda’s

|fundamerita) ri ght tg determirie Ricardo’s associations, without state intrusi om, as

parents have a Substantive Due Process right to _C'on-t‘rolthe-:up_'bringi'ng of 't_he_,jr-
child?,

In Troxel v G?‘Gz@vi?}e, the United States Supreme Court held that so long as.a

parent.adequately cares For the child (i.e. is fit), there will normally be no reason

* See, Meyer v, Nebraska 262118, 390 (1923); Pierce v: Society of Sisters, 268 U.5. 510 (1925);
sth‘;’ngt@n . G[uci_’g-.s'be?_-'gl,? 521 UL8. 702 (1997); Santosky.v, Kramer, 45508, 755 (1982):
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the ab.ﬂ_ity- of that parent to make the best decisions concerning the rearing of that

parent’s child.?

Here, Amanda has adequately cared for. Ricarde. Alfredo’s claim-of Amanda’s
alleged drug use was disproven when Amanda passed her drug test on June 6%,
2019. Despite being giver these test results, Alfredo still refused to return Ricardo,

The United States Supreme Court-explained that the Due Process Clause does

‘not permit a state to infringe on the fundamental right of parents to make

bhildre‘aring.. decisioys simply becausé.a state judge believes a better decision could
be made®. The United States Supreme Court has long tecognized that “there is a
présumption that fit parents. act in the best interest of their children.’

Amanda contends that fit parents get the benefit of the parental presumption in
their decision~-making asto whom their child associates until a nonparent
sticcessflly petitioiss the coiiit and is awarded NRS 125C.050 visitation®. An NRS
125C.050 petition is-not before this:-Court.

-Ama_n'da,_ as the _biolqgical'.'_pafent?o_fRi’c-a‘rdo,? is entitled to raise her child as she

|sees fit, Alfredo’s: only accusations against Amanda weve alleged drug use that hag

been disproven and a disagreement over the size preference of elothing. This is

* Troxel v. Granyille, 530 US 57(2000)

« Jd at 5869
1714, a1 68

¥ See, Rennelsv. Rennels, 257 P:3d 396, 402 (Nev..201 B): |
17 0000377
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nowhere in the realm of being sufficient to claim she'is.an unfit mother. Alfredo

has not put forth a petition for visitation eithet, Amanda is entitled to-have Aiﬁ_‘.edbz‘

removed from Ricardo’s birth certificate and the -affidavit of paternity and the
temporary custody orders ended. She should not be eternally beholden for a
mistake in judgrient she made with someong she was dating at the time,

D. Amanda js Entitled to Atforney’s Fees and Costs

NRS 18_-.01','0_5state_s'-aS-'fOIlows_:'

[. "The compensation of an-atterney and counselor for his orher
services is governed by agresment, express orimplied, which is not
restrained by law,

2, Inaddition te the cases where an allowance is authérized by specific
statute, the court may make an allowance of attorney’s fees toa prevailing.

party: _
(a) When the prevailing party has not recovered more than $20,000; or

(b) Without regard to the recovery sought, when the court finds that the
claim, counterclaim, cross-claim or third-party complaint ordefense of the
opposing party was brought or maintained withoutreasonable ground or to
harass the ptevailing party. The court shall liberally construe the provisions
of this paLagraph inr favor of awarding attorriey’s fees in all appropriate
‘situdtions. It is the intent of the Legislature that the gourt award attorney’s
fees pursuant to this paragraph.and impese sanctioiis pursuant 1o Rule 11 of
the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure in 41l appropriate situations to pumsh
for and deter frivoleus or vexatious claimis and defenses becanse such.clainis
and defenses overburden limited judicial resoutces, hinder the. timely’
resolution of mieritorious claims and increase. the costs of engaging in
business and previding professional services to the public,

3. In awarding attorney’s fees, the court may pronounce its decision,.on
the fees at the conclusion of'the trial or special proceeding without written
motion and with or without presentation of additional evidence.

4. Subsections 2.and 3 do not apply to any action arising out of 4

8 000038
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written instrument or agreement which entitles the p_revaiiihg party to an
award of reas onab]e'-att_orney ’s fees.

Here, Alfredd’s behaviim-haézequii'edj Amanda to file this motion and.

{ expend funds just to fend off Alfredo’s baseless attacks. In addition, Alftedo’s
_.b‘l atant defiance of the Court arder required Arhanda to spénd more funds in

|| rushing to.ensure Ricardo is entolled in the properschool before the school year
starts. Amanda is before thiseoutt through no fault of her own, Solely because

Alfredo continues to ignore herrights as Ricardo’s mother. She was forced fo

undergo a drug test and when that showed she was not under the influence of drugs,

Alfredo i_gnor_g:‘d the results and continued to refise to let her see her-son. Alfredo’s

unreasonable behavior is frivolous, vexatious, and harassing in nature and these.

actions have forced Amanda to incur sub'stanti'al’"ltagal fees, just to-ensure she gets

|something that she is: already constitutionally entitled to, the right te raise her child.

Amanda requests Alfredo pay for all her attorney’s-fees and costs.

{n Brunzell v. Golden. Gate Natipnal Bark, 85 Nev. 345,:349. 455 P.2d 31,

133 (1969), the Nevada Supreme Court readopted well known basic elements which

in addition to hourly time schedules kept by the attorney are to be considered i1

{determining the reasonable value of an attorrey’s sérvice qualities. The factois-are

as follows:

1. The Qualities of the Advocate; his ability, his training, education,
experience, professional standing and skill,
Licensed attoriiey practicing exclusively. i F amily Law. Graduate

" 0000339
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of William S. Boyd School of Law. Licensed in Nevada.in 2019,

2. The Character of the Work to- be done; its dlfﬁculty, its intticacy, its
importance, time and skill required, the responsibility imposed and the |
prominence and -character of the parties where they affeet the |
importance of the litigation.

Standard pleadings.

3.. The work actually performed by the lawyer; the skﬂl time and attention
given to the'work.

Work performed is visible in the pleadings,

4. The Result: -whethér the attorney was successful and what
benefits were derived.

Remains to-be seen
Conelusion
Amanda is Ricardo’s biological parent and as such has'a constitutionally
ntotected interest in how she raises 'R_iéé_rdo,_ including who is allowed into h-i_s_.lifé,.

and when. Alfredo has no biological connection to Ricardo. as he has admitted to:

Alfredo-wag done 5o under fraud and therefors, invalid, At the time of the

| relationskip it appeared, as new relationships often do, that the parties would be

together forever. Alfredo convineed Amanda to have him claim to be‘the father of

Ricardo and Amanda made the tistake of agreeing to it. A mistake, of judgrhent,

does not entitle Alfiedo to terminate Ricardo’s bielogical father’s rights. To hold

that-a non-related party can terminate a biological parent’s constitutionally
000040
20
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protected-rights without so much as notice would have a plsthora of negative
repercussions reverbefate througliout custody dispuites.

-Amanda has a constitutionally protected right' to determine who can erter

JIRicardg’s life and for how long. When a party starts displaying characteristics that
||-are concerning to Arhanda, Amandd ag the parent has the right to determing that
| person is no longer allowed to enter her child’s life. Alfredo’s conduct has become

'extrejme-ly concerhing to Amanda and has begun to affect Ricardo. Alffedo

withheld Ricardo for eighteen days without valid justification. After his alleged
concern of drug use was proven false, Alfredo still refused to return. Ricardo back
to his mother. In addition, Alfredq-severely réstricted the amount of contact

Amanda ‘could have with her own-son, limiting it to-mere minutes. Amarida had to

‘hire an attorney and go to court Just to be able to see her son again. Since that fime,
|Ricardo gets nervous any time Amanda leaves the house and démands. he gets to go

| along with her. If one were to think that-a Court order would get Alfredo to start

that he does not respect Amanda or this Court. Alfredo, despite the Court ordering
Ricardo to be enrolled in the school near Anianda, took it upon himself to-erroll
Ricardo intd the school riear his house. Despite reaching olit to oppositig courisel
multiple times to get his client.to adhere to the Court order, Amanda had'to take it
upon herself to have CCSD chanpe Ricardo’s school by acquiring the court minutes
0000414

p3]




U O

Ln.

~ .

10
11
12
13
14

15

16 |

17

I8

19
20
21
2
23

24
25
26

27 ||

28

| of the June 13%, 2019 hearing and speaking multiple times.with CCSD

administrators,

Not only is Amanda entitled to have Alfredo’s 4ction dismissed. for failure to

Joina necessary party, but Amanda s entitled to summary judgment in her favor on

this matter. There is nio dispute to any tnaterial fact. Both parties are awars that
Alfredo is not the father of Ricardo. The acknowledgment of patetnity was done so
by fraud, one of the listed NRS recognized challenges to the acknowledgment.
Alfredo has not adopted Ricardo. Alfredo is not the biolo g‘_'___i_c'a__l' father of Ricardo. As |
there is no dispute to a material fact, Amanda is entitled to summary judgment in
her favar.

Amanda’s constitutiona] rights as Ricardo’s mother also entitles her to have.
Alfredo’s name removed from Ricardo’s birth certificate and-:a;fﬁdav.i-t’ of paternity.
Amanda has a constitlitional right to detérmine who can enter her child’s life,
Alfredo’s actions have becore increasingly hostile against Amanda and is having

negative repercussions or Ricatdo. Amanda niust not be-forever bound to soineone

| who arbitrarily and unjustly keeps het child from her, decides how long she can

speak toher-child,.and defies. Court orders and her own requests when it comes to-

raising her child. Amanda’s constitutional ti ghts as the parent of Ricardo ean ot be.

usurped by-someone who at this point is merely a non-related third party,
WHEREFORE, Defendant prays for Judgment as follows:

00004%
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A. Dismiss the Custody matter for failureto join a necessary party;

B. Grant Summary Judgment to. Amanda in this Custedy: matter;

C. Order Alfredo’s name to be removed from birth certificate of minor child;

D. Order Alfredo’s name 1o0.be temaved from affidavit of paternity;

E. Order 4an end to the temporary- custody orders;

F. Award Amanda attomey’s fees and costs;

G: For such other and firther relief as the Court may. deem just and proper. in

the premises.

23

BARNES LAW GROUP

Andrew Semprémk Esq
Nevada Bar No.; 15093

712.8. Jones Blvd.

Las Vegas, Nevada 89107
(702) 382-9011

Attorney for Defenddrit.
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AFFIDAVIT OF AMANDA REYNOLDS
STATE-OF NEVADA )

COUNTY OF CLARK )

I, AMANDA REYNOLDS, being first duly sworn according to law, deposes
and says:

1. That I am the Defendant in the above-entitled action;

2. That I have.read the above and foregoing document: NOTICE OF
MOTION AND MOTION TO DISMISS FOR FAILURE TO JOIN A
N‘ECESSAR’Y PARTY, MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT, MOTION

TO REMOVE NAME FROM BIRTH CERTIFICATE AND AFFIDAVIT OF

PATERNITY, AND MOTION FOR ATTORNEY’S FEES AND COSTS and

know the contents thereof, that the same is true of my own .know]'edge,_.‘.exc':ept for

any matters thetein stated upon information and belief, and as to those matters
therein-stated, ] believe them to be true:;,

3. I will nd_t restate the factual assertions and allegations contained in the
foregoing here. However, I expressly incorporate same as if set out in their full
lenigth in this. Affidavit.

Pursuant to NRS 53.045 I declare undeér penalty of perjury under the law of

|the State of Nevada that the foregoing is trire and correct.

Mo uradola,

AMANSA REYNOLDS
000044
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Electronically Filed
8/28/2019 2:53 PM
Steven D, Grierson,

CLERK OF THE COU gg :

orp

Lynn N. Hughes, Esq. (6349)

ROBERTS STOFFEL F FAMILY LAW GROUP
4411 South Pecos Road

[.as Vegas, Nevada 89121

PH: (702)474-7007

FAX: (702) 474-7477

EMAIL: efile@lvfamilylaw.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff, Alfredo Mede]lin

DISTRICT COURT, FAMILY DIVISION

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
ALFREDO MEDELLIN, ) Case No: D-19-590131-C
_ ) DeptNo: G
P.Iaintiff; )
| v ) Date of Hearing: October 24,2019

| AMANDA REYNOLDS ) Time of Hearing: 9:00 a.m.
4 - . ] )
Defendant. g

PLAINTIFF’S OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANT’S
MOTION TO DISMISS FOR FAILURE TO JOIN A NECESSARY PARTY,
MOTION FOR SUMMARY J UDGEMENT,
MOTION TO REMOVE NAME FROM
BIRTH CERTIFICATE AND AFFIDAVIT OF PATERNITY, AND
MOTION FOR ATTORNEY’S FEES AND COST

AND

PLAINTIFF’S COUNTERMOTION FOR |
SUMMARY JUDGMENT REGARDING PATERNITY

NOW COMES, Plaintiff Alfredo Medellin, by and through his attotney Lynn

IN. Hughes, Esq. of the Roberts Stoffel Family Law Group, and files Plaintiff’s

000045
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| Opposition to. Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss for Failure to Join a Necessary Party,

Motion for Summary Judgement, Motion to Remove Name From Birth Certificate

and Affidavit of Paternity, and Motion for Attorney’s Fees and Cost, and also

makes a countermotion for summary judgment, réquesting the Court issue an order

confirming Alfredo Medellin is the father of Ricardo under the laws and statutes of
Nevada.

This Opposition is made and based upon the papers and pleadings on file |

{| herein; the points and authorities contained herein, the affidavit of Plaintiff, and any

otal argument the Court any entertain at the time of the heating.

STATEMENTY OF FACTS
Plaintiff Alfredo Medellin (hereinafter “Father” or “Alfredo”) and Defendant '_
Amanda Reynolds (hereinafier “Mother” or “Amanda”) had a consensual

relationship for a number of years, off and on. Amanda restarted a relationship

with Alfredo after having two children without him. One of these children was

Ricardo Medellin, born September 13, 2012 (almost: 7 years of age). Alfredo does
not believe he is the biological father of Ricardo.

While the parties were together, Alfredo and Amanda signéd voluntary

|acknowledgement papers, agreeing that Alfredo would be listed as the father of

Ricardo. His name was placed upon the birth certificate, and Alfredo has held him

out as his child for the child’s lifetime. The parties broke up thereafter. |
Alfredo has been constantly involved in Ricardo’s life. Amanda even

acknowledged at the 'be.g'i_-nn'ing of this case that Alfredo had joint physical custody

of Ricardo, exchanging custody every other week, It should be noted that the

_ parc'i_e_s have had a great working relationship prior to this legal action, and have

been able to get along for the eniire seven-years of Ricardo’s life. Neither party felt

the need to file for a custody order to decree prior to this tirne.
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ARGUMENT

HL AHredo is the Presumed and Listed Father of Ricardo.

Under the Nevada law, Alfredo-is p resumed to be the father. NRS 126.051

lists the presumiptions of paternity. Specifically, it states:

1.

A man is presumed to be'the natural father of a child if:

(a) He and the child’s natural mother are or have been
married to each other and the child is born during the
marriage, or within 285 days after the mar riage is terminated
by death, annulment, declaration of invalidity or divorce; or
after a decree of separation is entered by a cout.

{b) He and the child’s natural mother were cohabiting for at

least 6 months before the period of conception and
cotitinuied to cohabit through the period of conception.

(c) Before the child’s birth, he and the child’s natural
mother have attempted to marry each other by a marriage
solemnized in apparent compliance with law, although the
attempted marriage is invalid or could be declared invalid,
and:

(1) If the attempted marriage could be declared invalid
only by a court, the child is born during the attempted
marriage, or within 285 days after its termination by
death, annulment, declaration of’ invalidity or divorce; or

(2) If the attempted marriage is-invalid without a court
order, the child is born within 285 days after the
termination of cohiabitation.

(d) While the child is under the age of majority, he receives
the child into his-home and openly holds out the child ds his
natural child, |

(emphasis added).

000047
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This presumption, while rebuttable,. is still affirmative evidence of Alfredo

being the father of Ricardo. Alfredo has always held Ricardo out to be his child,

has had joint physical custody of Ricardo during his life, has brought Ricardo into

his home and openly holds Ricardo out to be his son. Alfredo affirms now and

going forward that he is Ricardo’s father, whether or not biology is a relevant

Tfactor.

Beyond the legal presumption of Alfredo being Ricardo’s father, Aimanda

and Alfredo both went to the government authority of the State of Nevada, and

| voluntarily Histed Alfredo hias Ricardo’s father; Both parties voluntarily signed that

paperwork, without any reservation or coercion, etc. NRS 126.053 specifically

states:

1. After the expiration of the period described in subsection 2, g
declaration _for _the.  voluntary acknowledgment _of _paternity
developed by the State Board of Health pursuaitt to NRS 440283 or
a declaration for the voluntary acknowledgment of parentage
developed by the State Board of Health pursuant to NRS
440.285 shall be deemed to have the sane_effect as a judgment or
order .of a court determmmz the existence of the relationship of
parent and child if the declaration is signed in this or any other state
by the parents of the child. A declaiation for the voluntary
acknowledgment of paternity or a declaration for the volurtary
acknowledgment of parentage that is signed pursuant to this
subsection is not required to be ratified by a court of this State
before the declaration is deemed to have the same effect as a
judgment -or order of a court determining the existence of the
relationship of parent and child.

2. A person who signs an acknowledgment of paternity or an
acknowledgment of parentage in this State may rescind the
acknewledgment: ' |
(a) Within 60 days after the acknowledgment is signed by
both persons; or

000048
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I certificate for Ricarde and is legally Ricardo’s Father.. The Court should note that -

proof of this paternity, and Mr. Johnson is essentizlly the same as an unknown

(b) Before the date on which an administrative or judicial
proceeding relating to the child begins if that person is a
party to the proceeding,

whichever occurs earlier.

3. After the expiration of the period during which an
acknowledginent may be rescinded pursuant to subsection 2, the
acknowledgment may not be challenged except upon the grounds of
fraud, duress or material mistake of fact. The burden of proof is on
the person challenging the acknowledgment to establish that the
acknowledgment was: signed because of fraud, duress or material
mistake of fact. |

(emphasis added)

Alfredo brought this custody action because he is the father on the birth

Alfredo’s parental rights given to him by ‘the execution of the voluntary
acknowledgement by both parties have not been terminated or removed at any time
by any court. Since he is listed, Alfredo has all the legal parental rights s father of
Ricardo. He has always exercised his parental rights, has always been part of

Ricardo’s life, and will always be a part of his life.

II. Mother Seeks to Enforce the Parental Richts of Some “John Doe” Third

Person.

Subsection 3 of NRS 126.053 provides that the burden of proof'in this issue
is placed upon the “person challenging the acknowledgement” to show it was done
under fraud, etc. Amanda seeks to enforce the parental rights of & third party,

alleging a man by the name of Tyrell Johnson as the actual father. She provides no

“John Doe” to Plaintiff Alfredo Medellin for the purposes of paternity in the mater.

000049
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action fails. This argument essentially states that since the “real” father of Ricardo -

is not involved, Alfredo’s assertion of parental rights as father is bad and false, and

interest,

Mother is stating that Mr. Johnson’s rights, or those of any other person who
may be the biological father, are being infringed by this matter. However, no
individual is before this Court seeking to enforce any alleged parental rights.

Amanda argues that Alfredo should have brought in Mr. Johnson as a third
party to this dction, the alleged biological father of Ricardo. She further argues that

since _Al-ﬁ"ed"o failed to name this alleged tiecessary party, the entire legal paternity

the entire case should be. dismissed. Her solution to this issue is to remove |
Alfredo’s rights, and to have Ricardo be entirely fatherless altogether.  That

solution is not proper, goes against public policy, and is not in the child’s best.

IIL.  All Necessary Parties are Involved '=in_ this Case.

Alfredo Medellin is listed as the Father on Ricardo’s birth certificate. He

revocation period is 60 days under that statute, which has long since expired. As
stated in the statute, this is the same effect as a judgement or signed order of the

Court. Alfiedo was placed on the birth certificate and is_the legal father of

Ricardp. This has the same legal effect as a judgment or order. (See NRS. .
126.053). Further, Alfredo’s parental rights have not been terminated by a court at
any time.

This is a custody action to determine the custody and visitation of Ricardo.
The necessary parties, both father and mother, are present and able to move forward
with the custody action.

It should be noted that the way to have Alfredo removed from the birth

certificate is to have some party issue a claim of fraud, thereby making some third

Page 6 0f 13 00005¢C




&

10
11
12

13
14

15

16

17

18

19
20
21
22

23
74

26
27

28

party take the place of Alfiedo. No such person is making any such claim. No such

person has ever made such a élaim. Mr. Johnson, nor ‘any other John Doe, has

:made any attempt to make a claim as to paternity in this matter. Mr. Johtison has

not asked to spend time with Ricardo, has not provided any support for Ricardo, has
not sent birthday or Christmas cards to Ricardo, nor has he ever made any effort to
have any relationship with Ricardo at any time.

Alfredo knows of no instance where Amanda has souglit to have Mr. Johnson
act as Ricardo’s biological father. This Motion for suminary judgment is

essentially the first time that Mother has brought this issue forward. It clearly

seems to be Amanda’s effort to simply remove Alfredo from Ricardo’s life so that

she does not have to deal with the joint custody arrangement of another parent.

IV. The Alleged Biological Father is_not a Required Party, nor’ and

In_dispe'nsazhle Party.

1.  Mr. Johnson, or any other John Doe, is not g required party to this

action,
Mr. Johnson, nor any other unknown purported father, is not a required party

to this ‘matter. In this matter, Mother simply proposes that Mr. Johnson is ‘the

natural father of tlie child, Ricardo. However, no evidence has been brought

forward that would establish that fact. To the Plaintiffs knowledge, no paternity |
test exists showing M. Johnson is the father. Therefore, Mother’s atfempt to state
Mr. Johnson is the father of Ricardo is merely speculation on her part:

A required party is defined by NRCP Rule 19, which provides:

(1) Required Party. A person who is subject to service of
process and whose joinder will not deprive the court of subject-
matter jurisdiction must be joined as a party if’

000054
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(A) in that person’s absence, the court cannot accord
complete relief among existing parties; or

(B) that person claims an interest relating to the subject of
the action and is so situated that disposing of the action in
the person’s absence may:

(i) as a practical matter impair or impede the person’s
ability to protect the interest; or

(ii) leave an existing party subject to a substantial risk
of Incurting double, multiple, or otherwise
inconsistent obligations because of the interest.

A custody order in this matter would not affect Mr. J ohnson’s interest. Mr.

Johnson, if he is the biological father, can always come forward in the years to

{come and still make his claim as the natural father of Ricardo, should he so desire.

An action to establish paternity is not barred until three years after the child reaches

the age of majority. See NRS 126.081. There is 1o bar to M. Johnson filing an

action for paternity at any time, so his rights will not be precluded by moving

forward with the custedy action brought by Plaintiff,

A custody order from this Court will simply be affirming what has already
been determined by the statutes of Nevada, Alfredo Medellin is the listed father |

and has all of the natural parental rights that go with that designation.

2. Mr. Johnson. or any other John Doe, is. not an indispensable party to

this action.
To paraphrase the Nevada Civil Practice Manual, if the Court determines that
M. Johnson is a required party to the action, the determination of whether a person
is.an "indispensable” party is required only when the person "cannot be made a
party.” NRCP 19(b).
000052
Page 8 of 13
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(b) When Joinder Is Not Feasible. If a person who is required
to be joined if feasible cannot be joined, the court must determine
whether, in equity and good conscience, the action should
proceed among the existing parties or should be dismissed. The
factors for the court to consider include:

(1) the extent to which a judgment rendered in the petson’s
absence might prejudice that person or the existing parties;

(2) the extent to which any prejudice could be lessened or
avoided by:

(A) protective provisions in the judgment;
(B) shaping the relief; or
(C) other measures;

(3) whether a judgment rendered in the person’s absence
would be adequate; and

(4) whether the plaintiff would have an adequate remedy if
the action were dismissed for nonjoinder.
Again and as stated above, no action taken by this Cowrt will in-any way
prej udice Mr. Johnson, should he desire to come to: this Court and assert parental
rights. He will be allowed to file a paternity action and make his claim of fraud

against the Plaintiff. Therefore, a “judgment rendered in the person’s absence’ will

have no effect upon Mr. Jolnson or any other “John Doe” who might make a |

paternity claim for Ricardo. (NRCP 19(b)(1)).

However, Plaintiff Alfredo Medellin will not have any adequate remedy from

this Court.of this action is dismissed due to the nonjoinder of Mr. Johnson or some

unknown John Doe. (NRCP 1 9(b)(4)). Mother’s proposed solution of dismissing

goes against public policy regarding the paternity of the child, as well as the best

Page 9 of 13 000053
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interest of seven (7) year old Ricardo Medellin. He would have no legal recourse to

'such an action by the Court.

VL.  There_is no Person or E_n'titv_ Alleging Fraud in_This Matter, Except

Mother.

There are no persons making the required allegation of fraud before this
Court, other than Mother. The state is not here seeking to overturn the voluntary
acknowledgement.  The District. Attorney is not seeking to overturn the
a-cknOwl'edg_me'n_t and have no father listed on the 'b'i’rth_ certificate. The State of
Nevada’s interest in this case is to have the child have a father and. o have that
father be financially responsible for the child.

Plaintiff Alfredo Medellin is not seeking to have his rights terminated. He
brought this action specifically to maintain and ensure his parental rights, not fo
have them taken away by this farcical argument from the Defendant,

Mr. Tyrell Johnson is not standing in this court seeking to overturn the

acknowledgement as fraudulent, nor is any other person making the claim they are

the. natural father of Ricardo. No person is stating they were defrauded out of their

paternal rights.

Mother is the only person making the fraud claim and is essentially doing so

on behalf of Mr. Johnson (or some other unknown third person). Mother only

makes this argument h__al'fway, claiming that Plaintiffs entire case should be

dismissed, and po_father should be listed on the birth certificate. She would

therefore be the sole patent of Ricardo, not having to deal with any other party-as a

‘parent to Ricardo.

Q00054
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CONCLUSION

The district court has broad discretion to allow or deny Joinder of parties. |

See Cummings v. Charter Hosp. of Las Vegas, Inc., 111 Nev. 639, 645, 896 P.2d |
1137, 1140 (1995). Clearly, Plaintiff Alfredo Medellin feels that there is no :

need to bring Mr. Johnson o some other unknown John Doe into this action..
This is a typieal and uncomplicated custody action between the legal father and

the legal mother of the child. Adding a third party 1s unnecessary and is just

Mother throwing mud at the wall to gain some advantage. Wherefore, Plaintiff |

respectfully requests that Defendant’s motion be denied in its entirety.

/117

111
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COUNTERMOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGEMENT
FOR AN ORDER CONFIRMING
ALFREDO MEDELLIN IS FATHER OF RICARDO MEDELLIN
Plaintiff Alfredo Medellin requests this Court issue an order regarding the

paternity of Ricardo Medellin, born September 13, 2012. As shown by the

arguments above, Alfredo Medellin is the named and listed father of Ricardo

Medellin, and desires to remain so. The statute regarding the veluntary

acknowledgement of paternity, NRS 126.053(1), provides that the 60 day period

|to rescind the acknowledgement has passed, and the acknowledgement has the

effect of a court order.

Plaintiff Alfredo requests this Cowrt deny the Defendant’s motion for
summary judgment, and issue an order confirming that Alfredo Medellin is the |
father of Ricardo Medellin.

Dated this /% day of August 2019

- ..IfﬁnN gﬁes Esq. (5349)
44]1 S-Pecos Road
LagX egas Nevada 89121
REAALL: Lynn@lvfamilylaw.com
Attorney for Alfredo Medellin

Q000SE
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that I am an employee of Roberts Stoffel Family Law Group,

and on the " day o‘ff@z%zgﬁo 19, I served by and through Wiz-Net electronic

service, pursuant Clark County Distiict Court Administrative Order 14-2 for service

of documents identified in Rule 9 of the N.E.F.C.R., Opposition To Defendant’s
Motion for Pickup Order.

Carol Barnes, Esq.,
esearviceblg@egmail.com

T
{\ \\\ /"“'.\k N . o
S s S
Employee 41 Roberts Stoffel Family Law Group
A
7

e
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Electronically Filed
‘9111/2019 4:58 PM.
Steven D. Grierson

GL_ER_? OF THE c‘ou%

Carol Barnes, Esq. | '

Nevada Bar No. 7985

Andrew Semprazik, Esq.

Nevada Bar No. 15093

BARNES LAW GRQUP, LLC

712 S. Jones Blvd.

Las Vegas, Nevada 89107

Office (702) 382-9011

Attorney for Defendant:

Amanda Reynolds
DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

)} Case Number: D-19-590131-C

| ALFREDO MEDELLIN ; Dept No: G

Plaintiff, } REPLY TO PLAINTIFF’S

- OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANT’S
" MOTION TO DISMISS FOR
) FAILURE TO JOIN A NECESSARY
- PARTY, MOTION FOR SUMMARY
- J UDGMENT MOTION TO
" REMOVE NAME FROM BIRTH

CERTIFICATE AND AFFIDAVITY
} OF PATERNITY, AND MOTION
) FOR ATTORNEY’S FEES AND
) COSTS and OPPOSITION TO

- PLAINTIFF’S COUNTERMOTION
' FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT

REGARDING PATERNITY

Date of Hearing: October, 24, 2019
Time of Hearing: 9:00 A. M.

| %%-;SAL ARGUMENT REQUESTED:

V5.,

AMANDA REYNOLDS
Defendant.

COMES NOW the Deféndant, AMANDA REYNOLDS (Amanda), by and

through her attorney of record, Andrew Semprazik, Esq. of the BARNES TLAW

. 000058
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GROUP, and he'r'eby files her Reply to Plaintiff’s Opposition to Defendant’s
Motion to Dismiss for Failure to Join a Necessary Party, Motion for Summary
Judgment, Motion to Remove Name from Birth Certificate and Affidavit of
Paternity, and Motion for Attorney’s Fees and Costs AND Opposition to Plaintiff’s
Countermotion for Summary Judgment Regarding Paternity.
Dated this {[7» day of September 2019.
BARNES LAW GROUP

s A

R ik o e TR

'Andrew Semprazik, Esq. |
Nevada Bar Number: 15093
712 S. Jones Blvd.

Las Vegas, Nevada 89107
(702) 382-9011
Attorney for Defendant
I.
STATEMENT OF FACTS

Defendant, AMANDA REYNOLDS (“Amanda”) hereby incorporates the
facts stated in her Answer to Complaint and Counterclaim, filed on June 3% 2019
and Motion to Dismiss, Et. Al. filed August 12,2019.

IL.
LEGAL ANALYSIS

A. Alfredo’s Presumption of Being Ricardo’s Natural Father Has Been
Rebutted and the VAP is Properly Challenged Due to Fraud

000059
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Plaintiff cites to'NRS 126.051 but misstates what the statute says. Under

NRS 126.051, there are several listed ways of presuming that 4 man is the patural

father-of a child. The statute does not state this is to be considered a conclusive

presumption. In fact, the statute states this presumption can be rebutted by clear
and convincing evidence.'

Here, both parties.admit Alfredo is not the hatural father of Ricardo. He is
hot biologically related to Ricardo nor has he undergone a formal adoption process

to become the father of Ricardo. There is.absolutely no dispute between the parties

il that Alfredo isniot the natural father of Ricardo. The presumption under NRS

126.051 that Alfredo attemipts to rely on has been fully rebutted by his own
admissions.

Additionally, Alfredo’s attempt to rely on NRS 126.053 is terminated by his
own admissions. NRS 126.053(3) specifically states that a voluntary
acknowledgement of paternity (“VAP”) can be challenged on the grounds of
“fraud, duress, or material mistake of fact”. Both parties have admitted they signed
the VAP under full knowledge Alfredo is not the father of Ricardo. This was fraud.
The state of Nevada would not have filed the document if either paity informed the
state at signing, “Alfredo is not the real father of Ricardo but we’re signing this

document stating he is anyway.” The state of Nevada has no interest in

000060
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.perp.etu ating fraud. Additionally, there is no doubt. fraud occurred when this

document was signed and filed as under the “Mother’s portion” of the VAP, the

mother has to ‘attest that “The man signing this form is the only possible father of
this child.” Amanda knew Alfredo was not the father of Alfredo when she signed
the VAP. Whether the court wishes to view this situation as both parties committed
fraud in signing and filing this document or one party committed fraud in signing
and filing this document, there is no doubt that fraud was committed in signing and
filing this document. Under NRS 125.053(3), this document can be validly
challenged due to fraud, Additionally, the Nevada Suprene Court has held that
“fraud upon the court” is “fraud which does, or attempts to, subvert the integrity of
the court itself”.2

If the Court were to hold this VAP is still valid despite both parties admitting
they know Alfredo is not the father and both lied to get him acknowledged as the
father, this would set a troubling precedent. If these actions were given Court
approval, there wouild be no purpose for parties to undergo an adoption proceeding
at all. If two parties conspire to lie to the state and say, “this person.is the natural
parent of my minor child” and they then immediately get all the rights and
privileges of being a legal parent, they are effectively getting a defacto adoption.

This can not be what the state-desires and it in fact is not what the state desires

000064
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¢ Alvarado v. Thompsai, 375 P. 3d 77,79 (A pp. 2016)°

which is why the state has forinal adop‘ti‘on proceedings to allow an unrelated party
become a parent to a minor child.? The state has an iriterest in their courts having
the ability to examine the potential pareni(s) i an adoption proceeding and
ensuring the best interest of the child is met before granting _p-arenta_l rights over a

minor child.* The state is blocked from this required inquiry by permitting

individuals to lie to the state and willfully sign voluntary acknowledgments of

paternity with full knowledge at least one of the parties is not the actual parent to
the child. This cannot be a goal of the state of Nevada.”

This is not a novel concept. A multitude of courts nationwide have held this
samne position. In Alvarado v. Thomson, the trial court eonsidered the case of a
mother who signed a voluntary acknowledgement of paterriity with an unrelated
third party. Both the mother and the third party knew the third party was not the
father of the minor child when they signed the acknowledgment of paternity. Upon
a challenge to the acknowledgment of paternity, the trial court held that
"[o]btaining a judgment of paternity by falsifying information under oath to the

Court establishes fraud upon the Court,"® On appeal, the Court of Appeals of

SNRS 127
TINRS 127.150
* It in fact is not:the goal as NRS 440.283(1)(a} reinforces this point stating that the Board shall “Develop a

declaration (o be signed guder penalty of perjury for the voluntary acknowledgment of paternity...”

0000672
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set up to protect and safeguard the puinc.

Arizona confirmed the trial court’s decision, holding that fraud upon the court
“harms the integrity of the judicial process and is a wrong against the institutions
w7

In MeGee v. Gonyo, a mother acknowledged that she and the defendant

knowingly signed the VAP even though defendant was riot the father of the minor

¢hild.8 She acknowledged that the defendant had been “good” with the child but

recently the defendant exhibited behavior she found troubling.” The Defendant

testified that he began living with mother when she was fourteen weeks pregnant,

was present at the child's birth, took an active role in the care of the child, and

bought het clothes and gifts." The Supreme Court of Vermont held that “inasmuch

as both signatories knowingly misrepresented defendant to be the child's biological

father, the VAP in this case was a per se fraud uporn the court, and properly set

aside on that basis.” 'The Court further held that the parties action employed

«...the VAP as a de facto adoption process, side-stepping the requirements of [the
Adoption Act], compliance with which would require notice to all interested

persons and the filing of consents to adoption, absent which a hearing would be

T1d. at 81.
& McGee v. Gonyo, 2016 VT 8, 140°A, 3d 162
1d. ar 164.

W1d, at 163.

Nid. at 164. Q00063
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biological father, and the State as parens patriae — their day in court.

held" in which the court considered all of the relevant interests. 12 «This is a classic
fraud on the court, deptiving the interested parties — including the child, the
n13

Various courts in the United States have held that when at least one person is
signing the voluntary acknowledgment of paternity knowing that a party is not the
actual father of the-minor child, it is to be considered fraud.™

Here, the parties signed a voluntary acknowledgment of paternity by falsely

telling the state that Alfredo was Ricardo’s father. Both parties knew that Alfredo

‘was not the father of Ricardo when they signed the VAP. Whatever alleged

presumption Alfredo claims of being the natural father of Ricardo is rebutted by the
fact he has admitted he is not the natural father. Additionally, the VAP that both
parties signed is specifically authorized to be challenged due to fraud. Both parties
admitted they signed the VAP, attesting that Alfredo is the only possible father

with full knowledge that he is in fact not the father. The state of Nevada, in various
statutes reiterates the importarice of signing a VAP truthfilly, stating that parties
¢an be subject to the penalty of perjury. To allow parties to knowingly falsely sign

acknowledgments of paternity undermines the whole purpose of the state’s role in

12 {d. at 166..

B4, at 167.

14 Jones v. Weller, 47 1L App.3d 492 (39, Dist. 1977); In rc Estate of Olenick, 204 Til. App.3d 291 (1%, Dist.1990); In

re Tompkins, 518'N.E:2d 500 (Ind.Ct. App.1988); Segerv. Seger, 780 N.E.2d 855-(Ind.CL.App.2002)

. 000064
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adoption proceedings.'® There is no doubt the parties committed: fraud when they

| falsely signed the acknowledgment of paternity. The court must set aside the

acknowledgment of paternity.

B. Mother is Enforcing Her Rights as Ricardo’s Parent

Alfredo cortectly notes that a person challenging the acknowledgment of
paternity can do so by showing the acknowledgment was filed due to fraud.
Alfredo mistakenly claims that Amanda is attempting to challenge the
acknowledgment of paternity for Tyrell Johnson, Ricardo’s biological father. This.
is inaccurate. Amanda is challenging the acknowledgment of paternity as she is the
biological parent of Ricardo. Amanda did not consent 1o an adoption of Ricardo by
Alfredo. As noted above, the state of Nevada provides a specified method for a
non-refated third party to gain custody rights ever a-minor child. Alfredo is
attempting to subvert this process by asking for custody rights over-Amanda’s child
over the protest of one biological parent and without notice to the other biological
parent. This _posi’t_ion_'.is extreme and contrary to many public_poli'cies_, oneof which
is having a third party undergo formal adoption proceedings to attain custody Tights

over a child.

5.See generally 1. Parness, For Those Not John Edwards; More ani Better Paternity Acknowledgments af Birth,-40
U. Balt, L.Rev. 53,99 {2010) ("[Ajcknowledgments. for nonmatital children by nongenetic fathers allow
citcumvention ofadoption laws, which seck to assuie that'when legal parentage is accorded to.men and wormen with

no preexisting parental inferests, the children's best interests are served™); 0@0@5 &
8
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Amanda made a mistake agreeing to Alfredo’s request when the relationship.

between herself and Alfredo was going well. In Amanda’s mind, het and Alfredo’s

telationship was built to last and she merely agreed to a name change for Ricardo.

Unfortunately, Alfredo’s actions morphed him into someone she was no longer in

|tove with. Amanda has admitted her mistake, Making a mistake in no way entitlés

Alfredo to a.de facio adoption over Ricardo, especially when the mistake at issue

involved both parties committing fraud. Amanda is the biological parent in this

||action and as the biological patent she has constitutional rights regarding her

child’s life. Lest this Court forget that this action began when Alfredo wrongfully
withheld Ricardo for over two weeks from Amanda; a reasoning he still has not
stated to this day as to why he did so. His alleged reason was “drug use”. Amanda
passed a drug test and even after being informed of these results, Alfredo still
refused to give Ricardo back to his mother. During this time of wrongfully
withholding Ricardo, Alfredo barely let Amanda speak to her own child. This was
the culmination of concerning behavior that Alfredo-exhibited. Amanda has a right
to determine that the situation involving a particular person is no longer beneficial
for her and her ¢hild.

Amarida is surrounded by a loving family and a loving flancé. Alfredo

claims if ke is not given custodial rights to Ricardo, Ricardo will “be entirely

fatherless”. This disregards the fact that Amanda has multiple loving family

000066
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members that love, care, and help support Ricardo: Amanda has a loving fiancé that
loves, cares and heips suppott Ricardo. Amanda clearly loves, cares, and supports
Ricardo. Even if Amanda was a single mother, single mothers do amazingly-
wonderful jobs at raising children. Ricardo is swrounded by foving members of his
family, all working together and helping ensure Ricardo is raised in the best
environment possible.'® What Alfredo apparently is seeking is.a method to stay in
Ricardo’s life after the dissolution of his relationship with Amanda. If that is so, the

proper method is for him to bring an action for third party visitation and not an

attempt to gain custodial rights over Ricardo.

C.  All Necessary Parties are Not Present in This Action

Alfredo is attempting to gain custodial rights to a child over the protest of
one biological parent of the child and without notice to the other biological parent.
This is an extreme position and Nevada’s Revised Statutes affirm this position as

they require notice when a parent’s rights are to be terminated.!” Alfredo is

attempting to get custodial rights to a child that isnot his. This is what adoption:

proceedings are for. When one undergoes adoption proceedings, a termination of a

parent’s parental rights must occur for the third party to gain custodial rights over

1 Additionally, Ricardo will not be “fatherless™ as. he still has a biological father whose rights have nat béen

terminated. .
000087
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the child. The state requires notice to be given to the parents of the child. No-such

thing has occurred.
Alfredo makes the claim that a custody order in this matter “would not affect .
Mr. Johnson’s interest” and Mr. Johnson can “always come forward in the yeats to
come to still make his claim...” This is blatantly ignoring the fact that a custody
decision regarding Ricardo without a doubt affects Mr. Johnson’s legal rights as the
biological father of Ricardo. Nevada’s statutes do not recognize that children have
three legal parents and there is no Nevada case law to support such a netion. If
legal rights are given to Alfredo, Tyrell Johnson loses his. This then opens a
Pandora’s Box of potential litigation from Tyrell Johnson as Alfredo did not take
the required step to provide notice to Tyretl J ohnson that Alfredo seeks to terminate
his parental rights.'8
Just as important, there has been no finding of Amanda being an unfit parent
allowing her rights as the parent over Ricardo to be diminished. The state requires a
party to undergo these steps due to the importance of the rights at stake for the

parties involved. Alfredo has dene none of these things and is instead looking for

an adoption without having to go through the requirements of an adoption

proceeding, doing so all under the protest of the biological mother and without

000068
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notice to the biological father. This cannot be accepted. Tyrell Johnson is a
necessary arid an indispensable party to this action. His rights as the father of

Ricardo are at stake and he must be provided notice that a third party is attempting

to terniinate those rights. Alfredo’s motion must be dismissed for failure to join a

necessary party.

Opposition to Countermotion

Alfredo puts forth a motion for summary judgment asking that the Court
state he is the father but puts forth very little reasoning the Court should do so.
Tellingly, Alfredo does not dispute any actual facts Amanda has put forward.

The cotirt shall grant summary judgment if the movant shows:there is no
genuine dispute as to any material fact and the movant is entitled to judgment as a

matter oflaw.'l-‘) The__part_ie_s' here do not dispute-any material fact. They both

| acknowledge that Alfredo is not the father of Ricardo. They both acknowledge they

signed the voluntary acknowledgment of paternity knowing Alftedo is not the
biological father. They both acknowledge the state allows a voluntary
acknowledgment of paternity to be challenged due to fraud. These facts are'not in

dispute and these facts make up the crux of the case. Summary judgment must be

5 Although Alfredo has not asseried-an equitable adoption claim, i.i§ important to address that he does not have a

claim under the faclors stated by the Nevada Supreme Court in Hermanson v. Hermanson, 887 P.2d 1241 (1994), as

‘Alfredo was aware the entjre time he was not ihe fatherof Ricarde and there was never an intent for adaption.

" NRCP 56 0000869
12
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granted to Amanda. There is no reason to continue to waste the Court’s time and

resources on a case where both parties agree-on the material facts of the case and

|the statute is clear. Alfredo seems {0 desire to make an emotional argument as

evidenced by a lack of supporting legal authority on his side. But the Court must
rule based on the law. Under the law the VAP’s are signed under penalty of
perjury. The law states a VAP shall be deemed to have the same effect as a
judgment. The law allows the Court to set aside a judgment for fraud upon the
court.?® The law allows a VAP to be challenged due to fraud. Both parties admit
they lied when they signed the VAP which states that “the man. signing this form is
the only possible father of the child”. These facts-are not in dispute:; Amanda must
be granted summary judgment.
Conclusion.

Alfredo is seeking an adoption of Ricardo without having to undergo the

statutory requirements of an adoption proceeding, He, as a third-party, wishes to be

granted custodial rights toa child that is-not his over the protests of one biological

| parent and without providing notice to the other biological parent. This is a

shocking position and is contrary to Nevada’s statutes and has no basis in case law.
There is no dispute between the parties that Alfredo is not the biological father of

Ricardo. He never believed he was. Ricardo knews Alfredo is not his biological

000070
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father. Both parties admit they lied when they signed the VAP, claiming Alfredo

was the father of Ricardo. The state can not give its blessing to the actions that

|| these parties have taken. To do so would undermine the point of having formal

adoption proceedings and disregard the state’s goal in ensuring its interest, the
child’s interest, and the bi_ol_o’git_-;a‘l'_parents’ interests are all heard and all parties
have their day in court. Various appellate courts around the country have held that
what these parties have done is fraud upon the court as the whole j_udicial system is
cut out by two conspiring individuals.

If Alfredo’s goal is to ensure he has court ordered time with Ricardo, then
the proper method is to seek third-party visitation. That motion is not before the:
Cowrt; instead he is seeking legal and physical custody rights over a child that is
not his, over the outery of one parent, without any finding of being unfit, and

without providing notice to the other parent.

A

W
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Alfredo must adhere the rules and procedures prescribed by Nevada’s
statutes. He has failed to do so. As such, his motion should be dismissed for failure
to join a necessary party-and summary judgment must be granted to Amanda as
there is no dispute between the parties on any material fact in this case.
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AFFIDAVIT OF AMANDA REYNOLDS
STATE OF NEVADA ).
COUNTY OF CLARK )
T, AMANDA REYNOLDS, being first duly sworn according to law, depeses
and says:
1. That I am the Defendant in the above-entitled action;

2. That I have read the above and foregoing document: REPLY TO
PLAINTIFF’S OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANT’S MOTION TO DISMISS
FOR FAILURE TO JOIN A NECESSARY PARTY, MOTION FOR
SUMMARY JUDGMENT, MOTION TO REMOVE NAME ¥FROM BIRTH
CERTIFICATE AND AFFIDAVITY OF PATERNITY, AND MOTION FOR.
ATTORNEY’S FEES AND COSTS and OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF’S
COUNTERMOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT REGARDING
PATERNITY and know the contents thereof, that the same is true of miy own
knowledge, except for any matters thetrein stated upon information and belief, and
as'to those matters therein stated, I believe them to be true;

3. I will not restate the factual assertions and allegations contained in the

foregoing here. However, I expressly incorporate same as if set out in their full

}ength in this Affidavit.

Pursuant to NRS 53.045 I declare under penalty of perjury under the law of
the State of Nevada that the foregoing is true and correct,
Aoty
AMANDA REYNOLDS
000073
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EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CASE NO. D-19-590131-C
DEPT. G

ALFREDO MEDELLIN,
Plaintiff,

vS.

AMANDA REYNOLDS,

Defendant.

e e e e M e e e

BEFORE THE HONORAEBLE RHONDA K. FORSBERG
TRANSCRIPT RE: ALL PENDING MOTIONS
THURSDAY, JUNE 13, 2019

APPEARANCES:

The Plaintiff: ALFREDO MEDELLIN

For the Plaintiff: LYNN N. HUGHES, ESOQ.
4411 S. Pecos Rd.
Las Vegas, Nevada 89121

The Defendant: AMANDA REYNOLDS

For the Defendant: CAROL M. BARNES, ESOQ.
712 S. Jones Blvd.
Las Vegas, Nevada 89107
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA THURSDAY, JUNE 13, 2019

PROCEEREDINGS

(THE PROCEEDING BEGAN AT 10:45:21.)
THE COURT: We're on the record in Case D-19-590131,
Alfredo Medellin versus Amanda Reynolds.
Did I say that right? I probably massacred your
name. 1 apologize.
Counsel, your appearances for- the record.

MR. HUGHES: Lynn Hughes, Bar Number 6349; on behalf of

‘the plaintiff, who is present.

MS. BARNES: Good morning, Your Honor. Carol Barnes, Bar

Number 7985, representing the defendant, who's to my left. To

my far left, is my associate, Andrew.

THE CQURT: Okay. Thank you.

The parties can have a seat. We are here today on
mom’s wmotion for a pickup order and fees; dad’s opposition.

Counsel, it is your motion if you want to proceed.

MS. BARNES: Thank you, Your Honor.

Your Honor, 18 days ago, the plaintiff decided that
he was not going to turn the child back over to the mother.
In the past 18 days, the plaintiff has ‘only allowed the mother
to speak to the child on the telephone. Each telephone
conversation was less than three minutes. He denied any
FaceTime., He alleged that my client is abusing drugs.

My client drug tested at ATI. The drug test résults
GoOoT!"
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have been provided to the Court. As the Court can see, my

client is not on drugs.

My client is a fit parent. More concerning, is that
the plaintiff is not the biological father...

THE COURT: Mm-hm,

MS. BARNES: ...of the c¢hild. The parties made the
determination to place him -- to do a name change of the child
and place hig name on the birth cdertificate. They cite to the
authority-they believe allows him to be a father, NRS 126.053
under (1) it says the parents can sign the birth certificate.
He is not a parent, never was a parent. 2And under 126.053
{31, that the signing of a birth certificate can be rescinded
when it’'s based on and one of the criteria is fraud. Clearly
it’s fraud. Both these parties knew...

THE COURT: Mm-hm.

MS. BARNES: ...that he was not the parent. I -- I don’t
believe there will be any more question regarding her fitness
as a parent. But as to what legal rights does the plaintiff
have now? He —-- as we git here right now, he has none. He is
not a parent.

So we arefrequesting-the immediate return of the
child toe the mother because the father has seized the child
and refused to turn the child over. We would like an order
that says that she has sole legal, sole physical custody.

Now, my client did initially state that she would be

00007C
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willing to go to FMC to work out some kind of visitation
agreement with the plaintiff beécause the plaintiff has been
involved in this child's...

THE COURT: Mm-hm.

MS. BARNES: ...life up until this point. At this point

in time, my client ig rescinding that offer because of the 18

days wherein he has —- she has beén denied the child. My

client is going to allow the plaintiff to see the child in the

future. She is not geing to cut him out completely from the

child’s lifé. But as of right now, slhe wants to have her

child back in her care. She’'s a deeply concerned about how

this has psychoelogically affected her child.

And if the partieg cannot come to an agreement, the
plaintiff of course can always file under 125C.050 for
interested third-party rights. But I do want to stress the
fact that that 1s vigitation only. It does not grant him any
legal custodial rights. The only decision-making that will
take place regarding this child is my client because she isg
the only parent of the child unless and until the biolecgical
father comes before the Court and asks that he be allowed to
have some kind of decision-making or visitation_rightsu

I do not know of -- and I was very curious to come
before the Court today, because I do not know of any legal
authority that would allow the plaintiff to attempt to

terminate the biological father’s rights or attempt to adopt.

g0oC7"
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this c¢hild over the objection of my client. 8o if the Court

wanted to speak to that, I would be very, very curious.

We are seeking attorney’'s fees. Thahk you.

THE COURT: Okay. Counszel. Counsel.

committed fraud oh the state of Nevada in wmy opinion,

MR. HUGHES: Wow. Your Honor, I’'ve never heard the law
misstated so poorly. Section 126.053 clearly states that a
voluntary acknowledgment of paternity ig the same as a court
order. The two parties, both of tlem, went down and put him
on the birth certificate. His rights have not been
terminated.

THE COURT: It is. a court order, counsel. I've reviewed
even the application process for that when it’s done. They
are -- they actually are swearing that these are the parents.
That's what she’s stating...

MR. HUGHES: They are.

THE COURT: ...I believe.

MR. HUGHES: Right. And she...

‘THE COURT: She as well. They...

MR. HUGHES: ...made that same statement.

THE COURT: ...both -- they both swore. And they both

knowingly committed fraud on this -- on the state of Nevada to

my —-- Lo what I see, if that’s correct if -- ‘cause I

J[my undexstanding is he clearly knew this was not his

bioclogical child. 000078
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MR. HUGHES: True. But that’s not...

THE COURT: Mm-hm.

MR. HUGHES: ...the point of that statute. The point of
that statute is to have a child...

THE COURT: Mm-hu.

MR. HUGHES: ...have two parents.

THE COURT: Mm-hm.

MR. HUGHES: These both went dewn and voluntarily...

THE COURT: Mm-hm.

MR. HUGHES: ...sgald, he's father. He accepted all
responsibilities. He committed no fraud. He accepted the
responsibilities of being this boy’s father, is on the birth

certificate. Hig rights have never been terminated. So to

come in now after the fact and say, oh he’s not dad, is --

that's where the lie is. They both went down and voluntarily
made. this boy have two parents.

THE COURT: Mm-hm.

MR. HUGHES: And to come in now. ..

THE COURT: And they both went down and lied to the --
lied to the state of Nevada because it says they are —-
they’'re his biolegical parents.

MR. HUGHES: Well, that’s something they can argue.

THE COURT: Mm-hm..

MR. HUGHES: But at this point, the -- the presumption

is, is he’s the father and has to be argued against.

000079
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THE COURT: It is the part of the presumpticn except for
vou just stated, he knew he wasn’t the father. So that’s my
only concern, counsel, 15 he admits that he knows that. I'm a
little -- it —- this is a troubling case. I mean, T read
through -- I -- I did do searching through statutes. My other
concern wasg, where is the biological father?

MR. HUGHES: Mm-hm.

THE CQURT: Why was he not involved in this kid’s life?
and, you know, there is a lot of issues with that because --
‘cause technically, I mean, if he gets declared not the father

and you're the only parent and something happens to you, he’sg

gonna go to a fathéer he’s never seen. That’s the part of what

you’re saying as to the...

MR. HUGHES: It is.

THE COURT: ...the purpose of signing a -- a ~- a
certificate —- a birth certificate.

MR. HUGHES: And, Your Honor, I’ve —- I’7ve had this...

THE CQURT: Mm-hm.

MR. HUGHES: ...very situation before...

THE CQURT: Mm-hun.

MR. HUGHES: .. .where a parent came in with a DNA test
that said, I am the...

THE COURT: Mm-hm.

MR. HUGHES: ...biclogical father. But the associated...

THE COURT: Mm-hm. Q0008O
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MR. HUGHES: ...the other father and mother had sworm...
THE COURT: Mm-hm.

MR. HUGHES: ...he’s dad. He had the court...

THE COURT: Mm-hm.

MER. HUGHES: ...order. He can’'t come in and overturn...
-THE'COURT: Well, the question...

MR. HUGHES: ...that prior court crder.

THE CQURT: ...was —-- the guestion that I would have for

that -- that case, since I wasn’'t involved in that. ..

MR. HUGHES: Mm-hm.

THE COURT: ...case; of course, would be, did he know?

Did he knowingly swear that or did he not knowingly swear that

on -- in your previous case? See, that’'s the —- the crux of
it for me is that. So T’'m not sure of the answer to that vet,
coungsel. So I'm not making...

MS. BARNES: Or were they...

THE COURT: ...a ruling on that.

MS. BARNES: ...married? Where’'s...

THE CQURT: Mm-hm.

MS. BARNES: Was —- was it...

THE COURT: Mm-hm.

MS. BARNES: ...a marriage...

THE COURT: Mm-hm.

MS. BARNES: ...wherein there would be the presumption.

THE COURT: Mm-hm. Right, I —- I mean, I don’t know
000084
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what the answer to that is...

MR. HUGHES: Well, it...

THE COURT: ...counsel. We will certainly -- we will
certainly get to the bottom of that.

MR: HUGHES: OCkay.

THE COURT: S6 with- that, though, my question, ny
concern, though -- right now my concern. is we can deal through
all the rest, the legal stuff like that, mom and dad. We can
get through all of that. And we will. We’¥e gonna séet an
evidentiary hearing to determine that.

But ~-- but, why is she not -- why are you
withholding the child for 18 days?

MR. HUGHES: Your Honor...

THE COURT: That -- that‘s my concern is —- is the well-
being of this child. Look, you parents can do all the things
you want to mess up your kid. But that’s one thing you should
not be doing is withholding them from -- from the cther
parent, nc matter what.

He’s been the parent all this time. So really I
would expect something until we work this all out, that to
happren. 8o why are -- that‘s my -- my concern. You said
there was drugs. She'’'s provided a drug test.

MR. HUGHES: Right.

THE COURT: Have you turned over the child now? You've

had. ..
000082
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Counsel, when did you_provide-him with a drug test?

MS. BARNES: We did the blood test quite a few days ago.

THE COURT: Drug test.

MS. BARNES: 2and, no, we’re -- still refuses any
FaceTime, still...

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. BARNES: ...refuses to visitation. And three minutes
-~ less than three minutes of a telephone call.

THE COURT: Okay. Counsel, do you wannha..

MR. HUGHES: And...

"THE COURT: ...address that?

MR. HUGHES: And the exhibit was provided to me this
morning with their reply brief.

THE COURT: OCkay.

‘MR. HUGHES: So. At thig point, Ybur Honor, he did what
he felt was necessary to protect his son.

THE COURT:. OCkay:

MR. HUGHES: . And...

THE COURT: Mm-hm.

MR. HUGHES: ...he filed a case immé&diately. Because
there was no court order when he did this. He wanted to get
it up here and get a decigion mads...

THE COURT: Mni-hm.

MR. HUGHES: ...in order to protect his son. If the

Court feels that going back to the weéek on, week off that they

Q00083
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had before is appropriate until such time as we come back and

do our evidence, then that...

THE CQURT: Well, my concern with that, counsel, is if
they had a week on, week off, now we have 18 days of make-up
tinme.

MS. BARNES: Well, and, Your Honor, I also...

THE COURT: And I realize it's not -- we were saying,
it’s mnot his kid. You're worried about 1ega1 rights. But I
have tovgive parental termination of that.

MS. BARNES: Yet, June 3rd, the drug test was provided.

THE COURT: Mm-hm.

MS. BARNES: We called counsel. And counsel didn’t

return the call -- counsgel’s office; I should say. But I'm

really concerned that we‘re'treating_him like a parent right

now because there'’'s no way that you can circumvent a
biological parent’s right by having some other man sign...

THE COURT: Counsel, I agree. But I...

MR. HUGHES: This is...

THE COURT: ...don't gsee him come before me. That’s the
problem. Biological dad hasn’'t come forward to assert his
rights.

MS. BARNES: Right.

THE COURT: You're saying he can’t take away somebody
else’s rights. But that person hasn’'t came in to assert hig

rights.

000084
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MS. BARNES: Trueée. Bubt she’s assérting as the sole

parent standing here that she’'s...

THE COURT: Yeah, but she -- she can’t assert rights for

the other parent that hasn’'t been involved all this time. He

needs to step forward.

MS. BARNES: Right.

THE COURT: Mm-hm:

MS. BARNES: But she wants to assert her rights. And she

is the only parent involved in this child’s rights. Zo she's
requesting scole legal, sole...

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. BARNES: ...physical custody.

MR. HUGHES: And I disagree with that determination.

THE COURT: Temporarily, I'm gonna leave it as -- as a —--

as a joint legal, joint physical custeody situation until we
get to the whole évidentiary thing; I think there’s a lot of
gquestions, a lot of those igsues about -- about whether what
the father has committed, how it was done. There’s all kinds
of issues of fact. I do note that the -- the drug test was
negative.

My concern, though, dad, is that you withheld this
kid for that leng. I -- the third -- we‘re now on the 13th,
so ten extra days this kid was withheld. That‘s not okay.
You knew she wasn’t using drugs by then. I mearn, I know you

first didn’t. But I assume you saw them. Right, dad? You

000085
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gaw the drug tests?

MR. HUGHES: No. I -- he -- T showed it to him this
morning.

‘MS. BARNES: We filed it on June 3rd.

THE COURT: Ckay. 8o you were ser- so you e-served
counsel?

M5. BARNES: Yes.

THE COURT: E-served.

MS. BARNES: Absclutely.

THE COURT: 8o you were served with it even on the 3rd.
So that’'s another, like I said, ten days that went by that
this kid has not been with his mom. 2and that’s not ckay with
this Court. 8o even if I had ruled that you wereé the
bielogical father and I went to that, I would still be upset
to that issue. Okay. 8o you understand that.

So right now, I'm going to —- until -- we’re gonna
set an evidentiary hearing to determine the isgue -- tho-
those issues. I think there’s a lot of questions, counsel. I
did the same searching you’re doing, I mean, about — .about
the other father missing and whethexr he has rights when he
hasn’'t stepped forward. Like, thére’s all kKinds of issues
that we have to deal with in this case. And I agree with you.
T —-- last night I was up till 1:30 in the morxrning —- 1:00,
1:30 in the morning doing research a lot on this case because

it’s —- it’s, you know, it’s not -- it’s not that it’s

000086 "
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probably completely unique, but ift’s not common in our courts.
Okay? Just putting it that way.

So I'm gonna seb an.evidentiary hearing for that
iggue to be dealt with. We can also -~ I -- I'm gohna -=- I'm
gonna send you to mediation to try to just see -- if you can.

T realize you salid youjwere-willing to. But this is the

thought .

I realize you're angry mom. You have every right to
be angry that you have not seen Ricardeo all this time. 2and T
would be really livid, as well. Okay? But if we take a deep
breath and we step back and we sdy, does Ricardo love him?
Yeah, Ricardo loves him. 8o I den’t want your anger for dad
and hHis bad behavior because hée thought you were using drugs
mistakenly or whatever reason he had or whether it was -- and
~- and. I'm sure part of your feeling is, look, no, he was just
being vengeful. I get it. I -- I can tetally see what you’re
thinking on that. But at the same time, this has to be about
Ricarde right now. No matter what, his family is breaking up.
No matter what happens for his -- his little world right now
is a little shook up; right?

And it was even shook up more,; dad, because you
unilaterally decided you were gonna sweep in and do this.
Because the original motion said, well, there’s drugs. But
then you were worried about clothing being the right size

fitting ¢lothing. I den‘t care about that. The kid doesn't

000087
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care if his -- if his shirt came up a little higher on his

neck. I‘m not —-- the kid’s not gomnna care about that. You

cared 'about that. And you were using that against mom: So
ﬁhat's-my-conCern.
But most impeortantly, it’s for Ricarde. I don't --

I want you to consider that when you go to mediation, that no

matter what, he's six years old. His entire life, he’s who he

knows as dad.

So I want you to consider that when you go to

mediation. I realize you're angry right now. I would —=- I

would ask you to really, really strongly consider what kind of
situation you want for Ricardeo and not -- not let your anger,
which ig justifiable guide your decisions because the little
boys is the -- whoe -- who matters; right. You guys are here
because you both love him and you’re fighting for him. And --
and -- and I appreciate that.

So I am gonna send you to family mediation to
attempt to see what you can work cut. Maybe you can work out
everything. Maybe you can come back and say loock, I -- I -- I
don’t know. I don’t: know what ¢an happen. But I just want
you all to remembexr that little boy’s face when you go in
there that that’s who you -- who -- it matters what he thinks,
how he feels.

‘Cause no matter what, mom, you signed that paper

and vou said he’'g dad. And so to the child, he’s dad. I
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mean, he has dad’s nmame. He goes to school. BAnd he, that's
my dad. You know, he goes here. He goes there. That’'s my
coricern. We’'ve set that kid up. to feel like that’s dad. So
matter what you feel about this and all the legal stuff we're

gonna have to navigate through and whether -- how the

custodial situatich’s gonna be, you gotta eonsider that

please, for your son’s sake.

MS. REYNOLDS: (Indiscernible).

THE COURT: ‘Cause you -- it's not fair to him. You guys
made those -- those decisions. You guys decided to put -- put
him on the birth certificate. I didn’t. Your counsel didn't.
You guys did. So now ‘you have a ¢hild that says, that is my
dad. 8o consider that strongly.

I'm gonna order you to mediation to -- to see if you
can work oub an agreement ‘cause I think it’s_always wise. I
know ¢counsel con both side are always very, trying to
(indiscernible} . The fact that your counsel said, look, you
were all willing until now you’re retxracting that. I want you
to consider your retraction. I’m not saying that has to be
the case. But you understand, I just want you to remember
it’s Ricardo that we're —- we’re faced with. Okay?

and I think when you made that offer, that’'s what —--
who you were thinking of. But I don’t blame you for being
ticked off of not seeing your kid, literally a few minutes of

conversation.
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So, dad, I'm gonna say that he’'s gonna go with mom
for the next, at least, 18 days to make up for the 18 days
with vou so that she gets some censecrated time. Okay? So
then he feels like, dh-yaah,'l_went with mom and went with

dad. See this feels more normal -- more normalized. I don’'t

want him to be panicked that he was yanked out from éither

placed. And right now, what you did makes him feel like he
wag yanked out from mom. And I'm thinking of -- of —- of
Ricardo’s feelings, not yours.

So the next 18 days, you will definitely have --
have the time with hin.

Other than that, did you guys have & temporary
order, post the 18 days until they come back from mediation?
Anybody have a proposal for me? I...

MS. BARNES: I think you gaid that you wanted to keep it
on the joint physieal...

THE CQOURT: I do.

MS. BARNES: ,.;custody_schedu1eh

THE COURT: I do.

MS. BARNES: So I...

THE COURT: So I -- I'm timing the time. What time?

MS. BARNES: Se what day did you normally exchange when
vou exchanged?

MS. REYNOLDS: Sundays, Mondays.

THE COURT: Were vyou guys...
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MR. MEDELLIN: Monday mornings.

THE COURT: ...doing a week on, week off gituation?

MS. REYNOLDS: Yes.

MR. MEDELLIN: Yes, ma’amn.

MS. BARNES: We were.

MS. REYNOLES: Yes, we were.

THE COURT: Is that okay with him? I -- I mean, wy
current ceoncern would be that’s a long time without the other
parent.

MR. MEDELLIN: (Indiscernible).

THE COURT: It might make it easier because his 18 days
might feel like it was long anyways so tc hHim his time frame.

MS. REYNOLDS: I had suggested it because I felt that our
households are very different...

THE COURT: oOkay.

MS. REYNCLDS: ...from each other. So it created time

for us to get comfortable...

THE COURT: Okay. So then that...

MS. REYNOLDS: ..within our...

THE COURT: ...that makes senge.

MS. REYNOLDS: ...our rules.

THE COURT: OCkay. Then I will ordex that to be the
temporary order. I‘m not making a ruling as to whether dad is
dad or not. But dad will determine that. I‘m gonna send you

guys to mediation. We're gonnd set a retuin hearing for
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August 15th at 10:00 a.m.
Dees coungel have a c¢onflict in her schedule?
MR. HUGHES: 10:00 a.m.?
THE COURT: Yes.
MS. BARNES: I'm in a trial.
THE CCURT: Trial. ©kay. $So that won’t work.
Give that one back to you. Tell ‘em what dates.
and we'll see if T -- they can get to it.
THE CLERK: August 14th, 11:00 a.m.
M3. BARNES: Can we go after the 15th...
THE COURT: Okay.
‘MS. BARNES: ...because T’m in a trial on the 13th, too.
THE COURT: Yeah, and you never know if it"s gonna
continue a day...
MS. BARNES: Yeah.
‘THE COURT: ...and you'll be exhausted. I know.
THE CLERK: August 21lst, 11:00 a.m.
THE COURT: That probably gives you...
MS. BARNES: That works.

THE COURT: ...time to get into mediation anyways, a

little more time. Okay. I -- I —- look, until we determine
the rest of the legal standing for -- for dad, I want you guys
to try to co-parent because he knows —-- that‘s all he knows is

—- as his dad, mom.
50, dad, you gotta co-parent, tod: It scunds like
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you’re the ones who didn’t co-parent because you were worried.
I get it. Worries over. Drug test has been proof. You --
you don’t have a right to withhold him in -- anymore. He's

gonna be with mom for the next 18 days. And it’s gonna go

week on, week off, starting -- so if it goes 18 days, it might

not fall on that. It will be the following. You guys
exchange on what date?

MS. REYNOLDS: Mondavys.

THE CCURT: Mondays. So the following Monday after the
18 days, then dad will have him. That will be my temporary
order for...

MR. HUGHES: Actually, may I make a suggestion, Your
Honor?

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. HUGHES: It is Father's Day this weekend.

THE COURT: It is. Mm-hm.

MR. HUGHES: And if we exchanged on Monday morning, they
would have him for three weeks. It would be an equal three
weeks, both.ways. And we would have him for Father’s Day.

THE COURT: What do you have to say?

MS. BARNES: My client just looked at me and shook her
head no.

THE CGOURT: . Mm-hm.

MS. BARNES: She wants her child immediately. She's

literally not...
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‘THE COURT: 18 days...

MS. BARNES: ...been sleeping.
THE COURT: ...1is ridiculous.

M3. BARNES: Yeah.

THE COURT: I understand., I understand. But what aboukt

—- what about having dad spend some time on Father’s Day even

though we —- you -~ he’s admitted hé’s net the father and...

MS. REYNOLDS:

son or talk to my son on the phone on Mother’s Day?

took

THE COURT: Wow.

MR. MEDELLIN: She never requested it.

MR. HUGHES: How can that...

THE COURT: Wow. That...

MR. HUGHES: He didn’t take him till...
THE COURT: That's gsad.

MR. HUGHES: He took...

THE COURT: No, ho.

‘MR. HUGHES: ...him after that.

Can I mention that I didn‘t get to see my

THE COURT: You need to congider that. He need to —- you

him after that?

MR. HUGHES: He -- it was just before Memorial Day. ..
THE COURT: Okay.

MR. HUGHES: ...that he...

THE COURT: So he...

MR. HUGHES: 1.,that he did this.
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THE COURT: ,..took him after that. But he didn’'t let
you guys —- SO you gquys weren't even. ..

MS. REYNOLDS: No, but on Mother’'s Day...

‘THE COURT: I understand.

MS. REYNOLDS: ...he -- he was in Alfredo’s care. And
they didn’t call me or offer time with me...

THE COURT: Mm-hm.

MS. REYNOLDS: ...or anything. It was his day to have

-Rickyﬁ So I...

THE COURT: But two wrongs...
MS. REYNOLDS: ...let him.

THE COURT: ...don't make a right. The child needs to

able to have time with the parents on that. I’m gonna -- I’

gonna order him teo be with vou for a few hours on Father’s
Day, only for Ricardo”s sake.

I'm gonna say what happened on Mother’s Day was
shame on you, sir. Shame on you, if that was Mother’s Day,

and vou shoulda kpnown better. For six years, I'm sure you

helped that kid buy presents and stuff for his mom. And you

be

m

didn’t do that then when you guys were supposed to have a week

on, week off. So shame on you. But I’'m not gonna punish the

kid ‘because of your bad behavior. .Okay? So I‘m gonna only
order, he’s gonna have him for four hours on Father’s Day.

can -- he dan pick him up at noon until 4:00, dad.

So that's gomna be my order. But again, shame on
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vou for -- for not even bothering to offer. You knew that all

along for six years you've been providing presentsg tc mom.

And now it’s the kid that suffered. T don’'t care about you
two and your feeling about it. I care about what you’re doing
to & six—year~old little boy. So that’s what’s impertant to
me ..

So, dad, you'ré goénna have him for those six hours
-- those —- those four hours, even though you withheld him for
18 davys.

MR. HUGHES: (Indiscernible}.

THE COURT: So that is going to be my order. You’xe
gonna. go to mediation and try to work this out. The return
date’s gonna ke on August 2ist, 2019.

Counsel, at that date, I want a brief from both of
you on the issue that we’ve discussed regarding the -- the
fraud of both of them agreeing to sign on a birth certificate.
I want a brief from both of vyou, Ckay?

MS. BARNES: We have an issue. The following is
unilaterally (indiscernible) the fathexr -- strike that. The
plaintiff has unilaterally withdrawn the child from the
school. ..

MS. REYNOLDS: Original schoeol I had him at.

MS. BARNES: That -~ that he went —-- the original school
that she had him at. They’'re -- they're...
THE COURT: Oh. . _
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MS. BARNES: A lot of the catalyst of this is they den‘t
agree where the c¢hild should attend school.

THE CQURT: Where did he go to school last year? What
were you saying?

MS. REYNOLDS: Schorr -- Schorr, on his terms, next to

 |his house for convenience for him,

MR. HUGHES: No, Your Honor.

MS. BARNES: And she -- she doesn’t...

THE COURT: Hold on a minute.

‘MS. BARNES: She wants...

THE COURT: So he just re- he just (indiscernible) -- he
just did that. What happened?

MR, HUGHES: No, Your .Homor, they agréed to do that.

MS. BARNES: She wants the ch- she wants the child to
attend the schoél where all the other chiildren, her other
¢hild, the other children in her household. ..

THE COURT: Mm-hm.

‘MS. BARNES: ...are attending school. He does not want
that to occur. They do not live c¢lose to one another.

THE COURT: Well, that’s unfortunate.

MS. BARNES: She —- and -- and he —- he will be relegated
to 125C.050, which gives no decision-making. ..

THE COURT: I'm gonha -order he goes...

MS. BARNES: She gets to pick.

THE COURT: .. mom' s .schood_(jogq,?
D-19-590131-¢ MEDELLIN/REYNQLIS 06/123/2019 ‘TRANSCRIPT
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‘MS. BARNES: Thank you.

THE COURT: I’'m gonna order he go to mom’s school.

‘MS. REYNOLDS: Thank you.

THE COURT: Because you actually are gonna go back to
school before this occurs.

MS. REYNOLDS: Yes.

THE COURT: ©Okay. 8o that —- that’s gonna be my order
temporarily. But, counsel, I want briefs on the other issues
that we've...

MR. HUGHES: Yes.

THE COURT: ...discussed.

MS. BARNES: Yes.

THE COURT: Ms. Barnes, if you will prepare. the order
from today.

MS. BARNES: Yes. Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MR. HUGHES: Your Honor, exchange time.

THE COURT: I'm gonmna reserve the issue on -- oh exchange
time. It’s gonna be the time that they’ve been exchanging.
You said a time, correct?

MS. REYNOLDS: Monday at...

MR. HUGHES: No, I mesdnt for today.

THE COURT: Oh for today.

MR. HUGHES: You’re asgking the child be returned.

THE COURT: Yes. Ye&s, return today.
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Where’s he at now, dad?

MR. MEDELLIN: At my house.

THE COURT: He’s at your house with somebody else. I
want him to have -- I want her to have him by 3:00 p.m.

MR. HUGHES: Thank you.

THE COURT: Okay?

MS. REYNOLDS: Thank you so much.

THE COURT: 3:00 p.m. with mom. Okay.

Counsel, prepare the order and submit it to my
court. I'm gonna reserve trial -- attorney’s fees for our
return. Okay?

MS. BARNES: Thank you.
MS. REYNOLDS: Thank you.
THE COURT: Thank you.

(THE PROCEEDING ENDED AT 11:06:05.)

* * * % *

ATTEST: I do hereby certify that I have truly and
correctly transcribed the video proceedings in the above-

entitled case to the best of my ability.

e el

SHERRY JUST%fE(
Transcriber V[I
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA THURSDAY, OCTOBER 24, 2019

PROCEEDINGS

{THE PROCEEDINC BEGAN AT 09:10:07.)

THE COURT: Medellin, is that the one?

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: (Indiscernible).

THE COURT: A1l right. D590131, Medellin versus

Reynolds. State your appearances, counsel.

MR. HUGHES: Lynn Hughes, Bar Number 6349, on behalf of
Alfredo Red- Medellin, who's present.

MR. SEMPRAZIK: Andrew Semprazik, Bar Number 15093,
representing defendant, Amanda Reynolds, to my far left. 2And
my immed- immediate left is...

MS. BARNES: Attorney Carol Barnes, Bar Number 7985.

THE CQURT: All right. And I've read over the -- the
matters that are on this morning is the motion to dismiss Ffor
failure to join as a necessary party, metion for summary
judgment, motion to remove name from birth certificate, an
affidavit of paternity, motion for attorney’s fees and ‘costs,
and the oppositions. They're denied. T don’t need argument.
That’s a ludicrous argument.

The statute is very clear. Once their name is on
the birth certificate and they’'ve followed the statutes, and
the time has run, the only way to remove their name from the
birth certificate is by termination of parental rights and

having another party, responsible party come in and take over
000104
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financial respongibility of the child. We don’t have that
here. So that motien’s deried. And this is a long
established law.

A1l right. So whére we at as far as to modify -- oh
as far as child custody and all the other stuff. You've got a
future hearing on January 30th for calendar call. And why is
it on for paternity whenever he signed the affidavit?

MR. HUGHES: That’s been the -- the issue.

THE COURT: It's the -- it's case...

MR, HUGHES: It’s..

THE CQURT: ...law's clear. That’'s...

MR. HUGHES: And...

THE COURT: Paternity’'s established.

MR. HUGHES: And, Your Honor, if I can have an order
confirming that, that will greatly limit the trial on the --
on February 2nd teo -- it’sg. ..

THE COURT: I'1l give you an order confirming that.

MR. HUGHES: Okay. That will just reduce it to
essentially custody and visitation.

THE COURT: Tt's just custody and visitation.

MR. HUGHES: Thank you.

‘THE COURT: And...

MR. HUGHES: Your Honor...

THE COURT: And chiléd support.

MR. HUGHES: Yeg. We have not had a serious attempt to
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settle until this issie has been resolved. So I anticipate we
will make efforts to do that now.

THE COURT: All right. Do you want a settlement
conference? Do you want to go to family mediation sooner?
You gan do a settlement conference either throughr gince we’'ve
got attorneys on both sides, the judges here have a settlement
conference that they do for each other. There’s the senior
family law settlement conference. The senior judge family law
settlement conference. And there are senior judges available
downtown. Where we do the settlement conferences in the
Phoenix Building right across the street from the RJC.

MS. BARNES: We're -- we're gonna take this up on a writ.
So we can do that after we hear from the Supreme Court on
thig,

THE COURT: Well, in the meantime, we’'re gonna be looking
at temporary orders to allow wvisitation.

MR. HUGHES: There...

MS. BARNES: There are already temporary orders in place.
That's already taken care of.

MR. HUGHES: There are temporaries in -- in place.

THE COURT: That’s —-- that’'s already taken care of?

MS. BARNES: Yeah. |

THE COQURT: OKkay.

MR. HUGHES: Share -- shared custody essentially at this
point.
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THE COURT: Okay.

MR. HUGHES: So I don’t know that we have anything else

then, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Well, you‘re gonna have to go

through probably a settlement conference through the supreme

tourt even on a wrikt.

MS. BARNES: Right.

THE COURT: Sometimes they require it, so.
MS. BARNES: Okay.

MR. HUGHES: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: 21l right.

MR. HUGHES: 1I'1ll issue an -- or have an order to you

Shortly;

will

/177
/117
/117
/117
/117
/117
/117
/111

THE COURT: Thank you. So once you file your writ, that
stay the calendar call and trial, possibly.
MR. HUGHES: Yesg, thank vou, Your Honor.

(THE PRQCEEDING ENDED AT 09:14:07.)
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ATTEST: I do hereby certify that I have truly and
correctly transcribed the video proceedings in the above-
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